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2021 Variance
T —F =
HK$’000 %
PEHE T T ERalsd
Revenue Uz 36,492 -0.3%
Loss attributable WEa AL EE
to the owners (12,491) 118%
Basic loss per share FREKREE
(HK cents) (M) (3.83) 118%
Diluted loss per share FlREEEE
(HK cents) OBL) (3.83) 118%
Total equity M AEER 308,280 -9%
Net assets value per share HlREEFE
(HK dollars) (%) 0.95 -9%
(HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK cents)
(BT T) (BT T) OBL)
40,000 10,000 4
35348 6492
5,000 5
24,063) (12,491
30,000 0 ( ) ) 0 (7.38) (3.83)
-5,000
-2
20,000 -10,000
-4
-15,000
10,000 -20,000 .
-25,000 -8
0 -30,000 -10

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021



A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

Results

2018
—2-N\E
(Re-presented)
(fE=51)
HK$’000
BT

Pk

B

Revenue g 26,350
Loss for the year FEEE (12,799)

Assets and Liabilities

2018
—2-\F
HK$’000
BT

Total assets BEE 587,191
Total liabilities BEE (222,049)

Shareholders’ funds HERE S 365,142

g g () FRAF - —F T ARER
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ATRAEENBERETRFE 2 ¥4E -
BERBEHNE DREBCTEZLEX
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+-ALEE
2019 2020 2021

“E-NE ZZ-FF —T-—F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT  ARTRT  A%TR
31,023 36,348 36,492

(21,780) (25,738) (14,312)

BEENRERE

As at 31 December
R+=BA=t-H
2019 2020 2021
“E-NFE —T-TF —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wBETT AT AETT

572,675 572,298 547,198
(223,305)  (250,286) (238,918

349,370 322,012 308,280
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General Performance

2022 was a challenging year for the global economy filled with
uncertainties and complexities. On the one hand, signs of recovery
began to emerge in Q2 2022 following the gradual uplifting of
travel restrictions by major western economies when the COVID-19
epidemic situation receded. On the other hand, the combination
of loose monetary policies and fiscal stimulus during the pandemic
together with the supply chain disruptions have fostered rising
inflation globally. The ongoing Russian-Ukraine war pushed energy
prices up and aggravated the situation further. To address the
predicament, most central banks in the western economies tightened
monetary policies and raised interest rates. During the year US
Federal Reserve hiked interest rate for a total of 450 basis points to
curb the country’s inflation rate that reached record high of 9.1% year
on year in June 2022. Under the high interest environment most of the
time in 2022, not only the Group incurred a noticeable higher financial
cost but the strength of the USD which had appreciated considerably
against most other currencies led to the unrealized exchange loss
from the substantial RMB deposits held by the Group. In addition, fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss was
incurred since as a rule of thumb, the higher cost of money tends to
impact prices of capital assets such as stocks negatively.

During the year under review, the Group’s net loss increased by 91%
to approximately HK$27,333,000 after netting the effects for (i) gain
on disposal of property of HK$7,462,000 in 2022 but not in 2021; (i)
unrealized RMB exchange loss of HK$7,735,000 in the year under
review instead of unrealized RMB exchange gain of HK$3,095,000 the
year before; (iii) fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$11,410,000 instead of fair value gain of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at HK$122,000 in 2021; (iv)
increase in finance costs of HK$2,253,000 compared to 2021; (v) fair
value loss on investment properties of HK$2,800,000 instead of fair
value gain on investment properties of HK$900,000 the year before,
and (vi) increase in government subsidies of HK$2,022,000 compared
to 2021.

ERERRA
ZEZFRTMEN —F - 2EREEE
HAGTBZETHBPERAE - —H@E KBS
COVID-19ZIBERER - B X B ERE
B ERERS) S ZE - —FF _FEM
MHIRERTR - S—FH - REHHEER
B & BRI B ORI RS B hn b 4 e B b
BREKAERLEA - FENBEHFHST
RERER  FR2E—FE/L  EEHEE -
AEDEFEBEBOPRIBITRE T EEK
K UREFE - FR - ERBFED NS
A50MEEE - UBIER -_E-—F AT 4
B EHNELEIA%ERBIRE - N T ==
FRESHRANSMNERET  TESEAE
BRI  BETERBOE
HEEXEAE SRASEBFIENEREA
REGHREERETHRELEE - LI &R
FEFABS Y BEEEEATEEE -
ERBELR RamEeRABERELE
AEEMNERELEETE -

REBFA  NEBEZAEIZ M %ELE
¥ 27,333,0007T + EAFEF R THF &
Z: (\W_EZ_FELHEMERZBE
7,462,00007C MR T - —F W M|EF
(IWNREBFEZARERARKEXEBBE
7,735,0007T * MEF R ARER ARKRE S
W #5#3,095,0007T ¢ (il)IEAFEFTABZE
2B EE 2 A EEERBE11,410,000
T MR =B —FAAERAFEFABR
2B EE AN FEKEEE122,0007T
(VVE T —FE - BRI ISR
2,253,0007T : (VIREWE 2 AT EEEEE
2,800,0007T * MEAFRIAREMZE 2 ATE
Il 7575 #5900,0007C © R (V)BT B = F
——EF AL N 2,022,0007T °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s revenue decreased in aggregate by approximately 0.3%
to HK$36,381,000 in 2022. Despite hospitality services income
surged by about 20% in the year, total revenue dropped attributed to
(i) income loss in hair styling business as hair salon for the first time
was listed as scheduled premises with order to suspend operations
as the HKSAR government tightened social distancing measures in
view of the epidemic upheaval in February 2022; (ii) rental income
from investment properties decreased from rental concessions to
tenants and vacanted premises and (iii) property project management
business segment did not generate income in the year. Gross
profit for the year under review increased approximately 37% to
HK$17,461,000. The increase was mainly due to the substantial
reduced depreciation on right-of-use assets which increased gross
profit from hospitality business segment.

Other income increased by 86% to HK$13,438,000. It was mainly
due to gain on disposal of warehouse property of HK$7,462,000 and
increase in government subsidies of HK$2,022,000. The increment
in aggregate was partially offset by the absence of unrealized RMB
exchange gain in the reviewing year due to the weak currency rate
versus an unrealized exchange gain of HK$3,095,000 in 2021.

Finance costs increased by HK$2,253,000 due to increase in
HIBOR interest rate during the year under review. The administrative
expenses increased by HK$7,233,000 to HK$36,369,000 mainly
attributed to unrealized exchange loss on RMB deposits at
HK$7,735,000. Without the unrealized RMB exchange loss, the
administrative expenses was in fact decreased by approximately 2%
as compared to 2021 after the Group’s various endeavours taken to
rein in cost included continuing freezing all payroll and discretionary
year-end bonus of staff and management alike to keep the Group’s
competitive edge in the adverse economy.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$280,928,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$0.86. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$530,725,000 and HK$249,797,000
respectively.

g g () FRAF - —F T ARER
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REBR-_ZT-__FHBERKARDH0.3%
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IR AR E R &IE20% - BIRA T BTy @B R
HEBEFNTHREBNR -2 - AK
EEEsEMRELIEEER  aifE
AEMANSEEZRINEMGE  SWE
RIRFEBBERBA  ((REVWEHES KA
HAmfAFRHtHEeRehEEWEmMRLD
RVMEEBEEES S BREALEEE
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FEFIL 0 o

H b Y2 A I8 11 86% = 7 ¥4 13,438,000 7T °
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2575 13,095,0007T °

HREODBFNEBSRITRAEREEN L
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S 1% 08 # 7,233,000 7T £ 78 # 36,369,000
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Property Investments Business

During the year under review, total rental income contributed
from Hong Kong and Macau investment properties amounted to
HK$3,821,000 decreased by approximately 11% compared to last
year. This was mainly attributed to (i) vacancy period in between old
lease expired and new lease commenced and (ii) rental concessions
offered to tenants whose businesses were adversely impacted
by COVID-19 situation during the year under review. Return from
leasing the investment properties was about 4% comparing the gross
rental income and original cost of investments. Valuation loss on the
investment properties of HK$2,800,000 increased the segment loss
to HK$7,076,000 for the year under review and total valuation of the
investment properties dropped to HK$128,200,000 as at year end
2022.

In Hong Kong total rental income derived from the Group’s retail
shop in Sheung Wan and residential units in Taikoo Shing decreased
approximately 4% to HK$1,374,000 with investment yield being
approximately 5% when compared gross rental income to original
cost of investment. The decreased rental income was mainly due to
the rent free periods granted to the retail shop tenant and applied in
the year when the tenancy was renewed in April 2022. The pandemic
took a heavy toll in the retail sector at the start of 2022 when the fifth
wave of the COVID-19 outbreak hitted Hong Kong hard, leading to a
tightening of all related safety measures to their most stringent level.
It was only towards the end of the 1Q 2022 at the time our shop
tenancy was about to expire, the retail market gradually stabilized as
COVID-related measures eased and the pandemic situation improved.
To retain the existing shop tenant, renewed lease was signed with
effective rental rate down by about 16%.

Rental income from Macau properties decreased by approximately
15% to HK$2,447,000, mainly due to (i) similar to Hong Kong tenants
rent free periods was granted to a long term quality tenant and applied
in the year upon the renewal of its office tenancies and (ii) rental
concession granted to the retail shop tenant. Macau experienced its
worst community COVID-19 outbreak in June 2022 resulting in the
government implemented many enhanced COVID-19 restrictions in
the attempt to contain the pandemic. Impacted by the epidemics and
waves of early termination of leases by tenants, the leasing market
was sluggish during the year and under pressure while overall vacancy
rate rose. In our portfolio, there is still one vacant office unit which has
been vacant since Q2 2021 but our residential unit has been leased
out in Q4 2022 after over two years’ vacancy even though rental
rate was only about 65% of the pre COVID level. An average yield
of about 4% comparing the gross rental income and original cost of
investments on Macau properties was recorded.

§

#

e o3 #r

MEREXER

REBFAN  BERBMREDEZHSK
ANMEEE 5 78153,821,000T @ EEFMRE D
#911% - W HEFEHFAR()ERER B 5HE
ERBCENEEENIHRNOBEFRNEHT
¥BZCOVID-19IF5ANFEENARNAS
BE o BERHeRABREERIEERAET
LR - MR EMENRIFREL BE4% - A0
B A - WEWEHEEIEARB%2,800,000
7T o EEEE E B 7,076,000 © BE
ETCFIFE  BREVMEZBEHEET
k= 51128,200,0007T °
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There is no acquisition or disposal of investment properties during the
year under review. Looking ahead, an improved economic outlook in
tandem with the return of economic activities from the epidemic to
normalcy should render a boost to real estate market. Morgan Stanley
has raised the property price forecast for Hong Kong to a 10% rise
from 5% earlier. With the government’s commitment to lower first
time home buyers tax band of Ad Valorem Stamp Duty in its latest
budget, new home transactions are expected to pick up both in the
primary and secondary market. The Group may consider to take the
opportunity to realize its investment for a reasonable good return
by disposing some non-core property as its tenancy expires in the
year. For leases that are only due to expire in 2024 and beyond, we
are hopeful capturing some rental upside as the economy further
recovers.

Hair Styling Business

Turnover of this segment decreased by approximately 8% to
HK$15,085,000 which was mainly attributed to business closure
when the salon was listed for the first time as scheduled premises
and the government tightened social distancing measures during
the fifth wave of COVID-19 in Hong Kong. Retail product sales was
also negatively impacted decreasing 11% from the year before to
HK$645,000. Segment net loss was increased to HK$295,000
compared to net loss of HK$108,000 the year before after the net off
of (i) decrease in revenue, (i) impairment loss on right-of-use assets
of HK$1,264,000, and (iii) government subsidies of HK$377,000
received in year 2022 but not in year 2021.

Hair styling business has always contributed a stable income stream
to the Group although running a successful salon is definitely
challenging requiring super people management skills. The industry
is all about service experience, customer satisfaction and building
relationships with customers, so hiring and retaining the right talents
is crucial to the business’s success. Now more than ever we are
facing high turnover in juniors and then some of our top-notch
professional hair stylists/technicians are aging towards retirement.
Finding and enticing new entrants into the industry has been difficult
and we incurred rising labour cost trying to lower turnover and
increase retention with existing engaged employees. So far the
management cannot foresee the labour shortage issue along with
rising labour cost can be resolved in the near term but we were able
to lock in rental expense, the other major operating cost other than
staff cost, for three years. The tenancy at the current salon premises
which expired in August 2022 was renewed after due evaluation
of the prevailing market rental rate of the comparable premises in
the neighborhood at the time and the renovation cost associated

REBFATEKERLERENE - RE
R - EEEEREIBF R E LRI EEIE
B RBANRGNNRELSESEHMET
%o ERTNFIEEBNYEE LA RER
HRATSBIEAE10% c BTN EAETEE R
FERBEREEREEENREDNER - FEH
FERXSER—FR_FHmHELOHA - AEE
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FIZLYEZREILE  WERAERL
Bk -BR_E-_NFERZEIBANAEM
T RMAREEZELCEE —PERMSER
RESEH -

ERRTER

KR & R L 48% £ 515,085,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS * & H &

with relocation. Looking into 2023 while we will work strenuously
to improve our service efficiencies and right-size our cost base,
we remain focus on the long term strategy to expand our product
sales by sourcing and introducing new branded products. The
government’s new round of Consumption Voucher Scheme hopefully
can boost up our product sales which was seen declining in the last
couple of years.

Hospitality Service Business

Turnover of the segment increased 20% to HK$14,437,000 with
segment profit of HK$3,721,000. Increase in turnover was mainly
attributed to a short term contract from a NGO providing over 50
rooms for its staff accommodation during the Omicron outbreak in the
community and increase in business travellers due to government’s
relaxation of anti-epidemic measurers in second half of 2022.
Turnaround in segment profit was mainly attributed to (i) government
subsidies received amounted to HK$943,600; (ii) decrease in
depreciation on right-of-use assets of North Point hostel amounted to
approximately HK$3,083,000 with impairment provision made in year
2021; and (iii) impairment on right-of-use assets of North Point hostel
amounted to HK$3,383,000 provided in year 2021 with no further
provision made in the year under review.

During the year COVID-19 pandemic and closure of borders
continued to adversely affect business in the absence of the mass
market of Mainlanders and international travellers and the business
survived on local demand. With slowly relaxation of compulsory
station of 14 days in quarantine hotel to 3 days home stay eventually
in the Q4 2022, more business travellers visited Hong Kong. We
benefited from these measures as travellers had more choices for
accommodation instead of compulsory stay in the quarantine hotel
which we were not a participant. Our two hostels posed average 88%
occupancy in 2022 compared with 90% occupancy in the year before
whereas average room rate had increased about 26% in between the
two years. Occupancy rates was satisfactory and comparable with
peers as we had adopted the most flexible pricing strategy making
timely adjustments on room tariffs to align with the changing market
supply and demand.

With total release of almost all of anti-epidemic prevention measures
in early February 2023, the government has put in a lot of resources to
promote Hong Kong including giving away free air-tickets and over a
million Hong Kong Goodies visitor consumption vouchers exclusively
for visitors and advertisement overseas to gain attention in the market
worldwide that Hong Kong is ready to travellers. Lots of exhibitions,
conferences, sports activities are lining up scheduled to be held in
Hong Kong in 20283. There are 1.5 million visitors to Hong Kong in
February 2023. With gradually increase of airline capacity, number

§
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

of visitors will be increased. Hong Kong’s tourist industry is on the
right track for recovery. Driven by the positive market sentiment,
in the beginning of this year the Group expanded its hospitality
service business with leasing a hotel premises of 22 rooms located
in Yau Ma Tei, in the proximity to the Western and Chinese cultural
hub, to operate a boutique hotel. The newly added hotel operation
differentiates from our existing hotel operations with spacious room
size fitted with a separate seating area and a kitchenette catering for
the needs and convenience of family travellers. This increased the
number of rooms in operation and effectively gaining benefit from
achieving better economies of scale which is one of the Group’s core
business strategies in future development of our hospitality service
business.

In 2023 it is expected the Group’s hospitality performance would
improve as Hong Kong’s travel sector rebound combining a personal
savings bonanza with accumulated pent up demand for business
and leisure travel in the last two years or more in some cases of the
pandemic. Notwithstanding strong business opportunities, the Group
will be heedful of market conditions ahead. Competition could be
fierce as hotel operators look to attract inbound visitors although its
impact may be mitigated by the decreasing supply due to the many
hotel conversions to alternative uses in the recent years. To keep up
our competitive edge, some renovation plans on the existing hotel
properties with due consideration in the perspective of sustainability
will be included in our implementation agenda. The road to recovery
is not paved without challenges, but positive steps taken in the right
direction will lead to a full recovery in time.

Securities Investments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$58,940,000 (31 December
2021: HK$70,445,000). The securities investments portfolio
comprised of Hong Kong blue chips and REITs with reasonable
yield on dividend income and good liquidity. Dividend income from
securities investments amounted to HK$3,018,000 was recorded in
the reviewing year.

Given the sluggish sentiment in the securities market with the local
stock market benchmark Hang Seng Index plunged to a 13 year low in
October 2022, the Group recorded fair value loss of HK$11,410,000
on the securities investments held which was recorded in the
statement of profit and loss in the year under review (2021: fair
value gain of HK$122,000). We anticipate that when the business
environment in Hong Kong is restored, prices of the securities
investments will gradually reflect its intrinsic value. We had inquired
with banks for investment options in any of their quality financial
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products of guaranteed principal with moderate return to leverage
on our securities investments on hand to enhance the segment’s
performance.

The Group’s significant investments (i.e. investment with carrying
amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group) held as at 31
December 2022 are as follows:

Company name/(stock code)

AAEB/ (RBRE)

Link Real Estate Investment Trust (823)
BREHERERETES(B2)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Link Real Estate Investment Trust is a Hong Kong-based real estate
investment trust (Link REIT). The investment objectives of Link REIT are to
deliver sustainable growth and to create long-term value for its unit holders.
It invests and manages a diversified portfolio of properties, including retail
facilities, car parks, offices and logistics centres spanning from China’s tier
one cities (Beijing, Shanghai), Greater Bay Area (Hong Kong, Guangzhou
and Shenzhen) to Singapore, United Kingdom’s London and Australia’s
Sydney and Melbourne.

During the year 2022, the segment recorded a loss on disposal amounted to
HK$854,000.

The Group will hold the investment for dividend income and to reduce the
investment when the unit price increases to a reasonable level.
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Note 4: Subsequent to the year end in March 2023, the Group subscribed 141,019

rights units of Link REIT at the subscription price of HK$44.20 per rights unit
for a total subscription amount of HK$6,233,039.80 (excluding transaction
costs) under the rights issue as offered in the offering circular of Link REIT
dated 7 March 20283. Following the rights subscription, the Group holds a
total of 846,117 units, representing approximately 0.033% of the enlarged
units in issue after completion of the rights issue. The Group holds positive
views towards the prospects of Link REIT considering its current investment
portfolio worth over HK$200 billion as well as its multiple investment
approaches in its next phase of growth. It is an investment opportunity for
the Group to enhance its investment return over time through a combination
of capital gains on disposal and cash returns via cash distributions with a
reasonably attractive yield potential.

Property Project Management Business

There was no new project and the segment recorded segment loss
of HK$75,000 after basic administrative expenses for the year under
review. In 2022 as the COVID-19 pandemic continued to rage in Hong
Kong causing severe disruptions in the economic activities and a
very sluggish property market. The Group was unable to secure new
renovation projects from new home buyers or existing home owners
who became homebound from continued travel restrictions and
reluctant to renovate their dwellings considering the inconvenience
involved. As the economy revives, we strive to revitalize the business
segment and diversify the income base by exploring into securing
repair and management contracts on fixed basis and contract terms
from property owners of enbloc commercial or residential buildings.

Other Business Segments

During the year under review, Money lending business recorded
turnover of HK$20,000 and segment loss was HK$2,000. We expect
operation in this segment to be minimal and customers served are
normally on referral basis with careful consideration to credit risk
exposure.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a cash and bank
balance including pledged bank deposits of HK$101,336,000
and net current liabilities of HK$61,499,000. The current ratio
(calculated as the current assets to the current liabilities) of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 was approximately 0.73 (31
December 2021: 0.83).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. But the Group has substantial amount
of Renminbi deposits on hand which is exposed to fluctuations
on Renminbi exchange rates. The Directors consider that in the
long run the Renminbi exchange rate will be stable.

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment, certain
investment properties and certain bank deposits of the Group
were pledged to two banks to secure the bank borrowings
of approximately HK$208,891,000, which is denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and bearing interest at floating rate. The
Group did not have significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). There is no capital
commitments as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total equity of
HK$280,928,000, fixed rate liability of HK$11,018,000, floating
rate liability of HK$208,891,000 and interest-free liabilities
of HK$29,888,000, representing 4%, 74% and 11% of the
Group’s total equity, respectively. The gearing ratio (calculated
as the total long term loan to the total shareholders’ equity) of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 was approximately 5% (31
December 2021: 3%).
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Significant Investments, material Acquisition and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed
a property which had been used as warehouse by the Group at
consideration of HK$8,200,000 and recorded gain on disposal
of HK$7,462,000.

Employment Information

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed approximately
a total of 45 employees (2021: 48). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$11,710,000 (2021: HK$12,512,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Dividend Policy

When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board needs to consider potential opportunities and risks
existing in the Company’s operation and development as
well as assess various factors, regardless of whether they
are financial or operational, internal or external, in the past or
the future, microeconomic or macroeconomic. The payment
of dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board.
The Board may decide the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare or recommend any special distributions.
Dividends may be declared or paid by way of cash or scrip
or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board will conduct
supervision and review from time to time and there can be no
assurance that dividend will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Board shall discuss amendments to
this policy when necessary.
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The outlook of 2023 should be more stable with the ending of
the pandemic and resumption of pre-COVID normalcy underway.
The worldwide easing of travel restrictions and social distancing
measures, especially with respect to China which was plagued
by COVID-19 pandemic in 2022 with city/district level lockdown
measures, should enable a recovery of global economy. Nevertheless
macroeconomic headwinds still lie ahead with uncertainties including
the ongoing warfare between Russia and Ukraine, the continuing
geo-political tensions between China and US and further interest
hikes by US would all impede the pace of the world’s economic
recovery. We are particularly cautious about the interest rate hikes
and their potential impacts on the Group’s business. As recently
announced in March, the US Federal Reserve made decision for
the ninth consecutive time to raise interest rates by a quarter point
to fight stubbornly high inflation despite the risk to financial stability
in view of the banking chaos sparked by collapses of two regional
banks in US in a week. US Federal Reserve Chairman Jerome Powell
in his public statement has clearly stated that restoring price stability
remains a top policy goal. The Federal Reserve still expects further
interest hikes in the year to bring the federal funds rate to 5.1% by the
end of 2023. Inflationary pressure and rising interest rates will add to
operating costs and financial expenses and continue to weigh on the
performance of the Group.

After three years of severe business disruption from the pandemic,
Hong Kong finally sees a roadmap for reconnecting with the Mainland
and the world. Chief Executive John Lee announced cancellation
of most COVID-19 travel restrictions for overseas visitors from mid
December 2022 and the border with China reopened on 8 January
2023. Easier and quarantine free travel for inbound visitors will
provide the impetus for local economic growth with GDP expected to
grow at about 3.5% in 20283. Over in Macau where the Group holds
investment properties, the city’s economic situation has continued
to improve in recent months since the removal of all COVID related
restrictions earlier in January in which month the number of visitor
arrivals surpassed the one million level for the first time in three years.
Tourism revenue will largely drive the city’s GDP and scholars at
University of Macau project Macau economy could grow up to 44%
this year following a 17% decline seen in 2022. We start to see light
at end of the tunnel as the two cities open for visitors and revive local
economic activities. A recovering Chinese economy that targets a 5%
GDP growth this year through the government’s fiscal and monetary
measures should add momentum to our economic growth.
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In the latest budget the HKSAR government is again issuing electronic
consumer vouchers this year to stimulate domestic consumption
and speed up the recovery of the retail market. The roll out of the
consumption vouchers hopefully would boost the service income
and product sales in our hair styling business segment. Another
highlight of the budget is the tourism boost to attract tourists and
enliven Hong Kong’s image. The government will earmark HK$100
million for attracting more mega events with significant visitor appeal
and tourism promotional effects to be staged in Hong Kong. The
Hong Kong Tourism Board (HKTB) will spend over HK$250 million to
organize and promote major tourism events, inter alia, Hong Kong
Pop Culture Festival to be held for the first time. Moreover, additional
government funding of about HK$200 million will be allocated to
HKTB for stepping up its efforts to stage more international meetings,
incentive travels, conventions and exhibitions (MICE) of various
scale and type in respect of finance, innovation and technology,
medicine etc in Hong Kong to attract high value-added visitors and
consolidate Hong Kong’s position as the premier MICE destination
in the region. As HKTB’s slogan goes, from world class events to
seasonal celebrations, there is always something happening in Hong
Kong. Similarly in Macau, the government is pushing for more MICE
tourists as they historically spend more and stay longer in Macau.
With new MICE venues opening in the pipeline, the Macao Trade and
Investment Promotion Institute pledged in 2023 it will make every
effort to drive Macau’s MICE’s industry and foster the city’s economic
diversification away from gaming. The strenuous efforts of the
governments to promote Hong Kong and Macau and raise the cities’
profile around the world supports a positive and promising prospect
to the two of the Group’s core businesses, hospitality service and
property investment, in the respective cities.
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Although the market may not be seeing an immediate V shape
bound of inbound tourists, on the back of a return of leisure and
meetings, incentives, conference and events travel it is expected hotel
accommodation will be in greater demand and room rates to inch
their way towards pre-COVID level in 2023. We continue to recognize
the long term potential of Hong Kong’s hospitality industry and as the
market sentiment is turning positive, the Group resumed exploring
into project plans that have been on hold due to the pandemic.
Beginning January this year a boutique hotel operating at Yau Ma
Tei was added to our hospitality portfolio. Going forward before
the Group takes a leap for further expansion, prevailing underlying
challenges in the tourism/hospitality sector will be duly considered. As
the city opens to tourism, like some other industries one issue facing
the tourism/hospitality sector is the manpower shortage as workers
quitted the industries during the COVID induced downturn plus the
talent outflow from Hong Kong in the past two years. It will take
some time to replenish the depleted base of workforce, in particular,
the aviation industry. The recovery pace in the tourism/hospitality
industries will be dampened if airlines cannot ramp up its capacity to
meet increasing passenger demand. At the same time the market still
takes time to assess the renewed traveller market. In the aftermath
of the pandemic, hotel operators need to deal with an elevated
grasp of importance of health, safety and cleanliness and mounting
desire for a unique stay experience from customers. In respect of
the hiring challenges in a tight labour market, we might need to turn
to technology not to replace staff or eliminate the need for hiring but
allow all staff to do more with less time. By enabling staff to automate
and save time, customers will benefit from extra attention being paid
to them. We believe to succeed and sustain our hospitality business
the management needs to keep abreast of the current and emerging
hotel trends.
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The Group always strives for being an outstanding member of the
communities in the territories it operates, Hong Kong and Macau.
As such, each year the management would set targets to achieve
goals of community care and environment protection by actively
participating in various social services. In the future the Group shall
continue to seek innovative and meaningful ways to engage its
employees and associates in building stronger and more vibrant
communities.

During the year 2022, the Group was honoured with the following
awards:

- “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for 15 years in succession

- “Good MPF Employer” by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority for 8 years in succession

= “Manpower Developer” by the Employee Retraining Board
in “Manpower Developer Award Scheme” for 4 consecutive
sessions

- “Social Capital Builder” award by the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for 4 continuous sessions

- “Hong Kong Green Organization” accredited by Environmental
Campaign Committee since January 2018

- accredited as “Happy Company” (organized by Hong Kong
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council) since May 2020 and have committed to
develop corporate caring, wisdom, toughness and motivation
S0 as to provide a happy workplace for staff

- Hong Kong Awards Environment Excellence by Environmental
Campaign Committee for pursuit of environmental initiatives
and participation since 2019

The Group is always firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and a
more detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of our
activities during the year will be posted in our company’s website.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. The analysis of the principal
activities and geographical locations of the operations are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 63 to 66.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
management discussion and analysis from pages 6 to 18 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2022, if any, can also be
found in the abovementioned sections and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in management discussion
and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the Company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The Company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
Company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The Group is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and
disclosing Environmental, Social and Governance Report during the
year.
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There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital
and no share option was granted under the Company’s share option
scheme as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019 (“Scheme”) during the
year under review. Details of the Company’s share capital and details
of the Scheme are set out in notes 29 and 30 respectively to the

financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any invested entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as

a whole.

2. The Participants of the Scheme to whom Option(s) may
be granted by the Board shall include Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, professional or service providers of any
member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

3. Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 29,347,742 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this

annual report is 9%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the

Company.

5. The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter

period as the Board may determine.
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6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7. Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is

HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.
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The following table discloses the Company’s share options held by
each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company
and the employees of the Company granted under the Scheme during
the year 2022:

TREBEENRZZZ-FEN ARGHTE
FCARAETERERARREEFERE
ETEIER 2 BERRAE

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at Granted  Exercised Cancelled at
priceper ~ 1January  duringthe  during the during the 31 December
Name of participant Date of grant Validity period Share HK$ 2022 year2022  year2022 year 2022
(Note)
R=B-Z&
SR -B-B RHoBIZE ' Rz k- =1-H
SRERE REEH BhE k8 BRATE ERRF ERg HRATE
(B2
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syia 14 September 14 September 2016 to 3,096,000 3,096,000
Director ana substantial 2016 13 September 2026
sherefolblr of the Z5-ENA 5 ENATERE
Compary +RA ZEIENATER
i 19 September 19 September 2017 to 3,096,000 3,096,000
EERARATERR 2017 18 September 2027
E-tERf ZR-tEAATARE
1A ZECHEAATIA
3 October 2018 3 October 2018 to 3,096,000 3,096,000
“E-)\F+AZR  20ctober 2028
8- \E+A=AZ
ZECN\ETAZA
16 October 2019 16 October 2019 to 3,260,000 3,260,000
ZE-N\ATH 15 Qctober 2029
i ZE-NETATARE
ZECNETATER
Total 12,548,000 12,548,000
4
Note:  The closing prices per share immediately before 14 September 2016, 19 izt BEE-_ZT—X"FALAT+HNHE - - —_ET—+FhA

September 2017, 3 October 2018 and 16 October 2019 (the date on which the
share options were granted) were HK$0.73, HK$0.69, HK$0.395 and HK$0.25
respectively.

+hB - ZFT-—N\FTA=ZBR=Z—hAF+A
TRA(MELBERES B)AISRETED B A
0,737 ~ BH0.697T © B H0.3957T BB
0.257T ©

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December
2022.
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At 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$32,975,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$181,003,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 67 and in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 179
to 180.

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$208,891,000 (2021: HK$201,783,000). Particulars
of borrowings are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$19,000 (2021: HK$25,000).
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on pages 32 to 33 of the Annual Report.

The Group regards the executive directors, a director of subsidiaries
and the heads of functional departments as members of the senior
management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
team were within the following bands:

Emolument bands i< %5 &

Nil — HK$1,000,000 T ZF % %1,000,0007T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

751,000,001 T 2 4 #2,000,0007T
782,000,001 T & 74 #3,000,0007T
753,000,001 728 %4,000,0007T
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The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investments business. The five major suppliers of the Group
were attributable to hair styling. The percentages of the sales and
purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers
and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 4%
— five largest customers combined 10%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 41%
— five largest suppliers combined 89%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 30 May 2023 to Friday,
2 June 2023 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21st Floor,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong by not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 29 May 2023.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. LAU Pui Wing

Ms. Ho Ting Mei

Mr. Wu BinQuan (appointed on 21 October 2022)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation. Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia and Ms. Ho Ting Mei shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Wu BinQuan was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director on 21 October 2022 will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for one year
until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one
month’s prior written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Other than the share option schemes as mentioned earlier, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
no permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise).

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.
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Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 49, brother of the Company’s
Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed
as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004
respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning,
business development and general management. Mr. Tsang is a
director of ST (79) Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and
Barsmark Investments Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders
of the Company, and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited,
the holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working
with international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 48, sister of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, was appointed
as Executive Director in 2010. She is now responsible for the sales
and leasing in the property investments business segment of the
Group. Ms. Tsang is also a director of ST (79) Investment and
Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the Company and a director
of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of ST (79)
Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 65, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. LAU Pui Wing, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2017. He is a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also an associate of the Hong
Kong Institution of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance institute and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He now runs a professional accountancy firm and has over 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance.

Ms. HO Ting Mei, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2020. She received her tertiary education
in United States and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree majoring
in marketing. Ms. HO has solid experience in both conventional
and digital marketing, business development, corporate relations
and digital media. Being an entrepreneur, her business covers
brand development as well as strategic and tactical marketing
with innovative concepts for corporates, products or services;
establishment of global distributing network and in addition, public
relation and corporate communication to source and build an
extensive network including government agencies and NGOs and
collaborate business opportunities across different industries on new
project or campaign development.

Mr. WU BinQuan, aged 69, as appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2022. Mr. Wu holds professional diploma in
International Accounting from Beijing Economic Correspondence
University, professional diploma in Commercial Accounting from
Shenzhen University (Correspondence). He received his training
in hotel management in Mainland China and has over 28 years of
experience in hotel industry. He was financial controller, acting
general manager, project controller in finance for different hotels or
resorts in Guangzhou, Xian, Haikou, Suzhou, Shengyang, Beijing and
Philippines.
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Mr. Wu had been an executive director of the Company for the
period from February 2006 to September 2011. He was responsible
to oversee the finance and operation of the Group’s hotel related
investment in Macau. Mr. Wu had been a director of an associated
company of the Group for the period from February 2006 to March
2008 acting as a hotel owner’s representative in Macau to whom the
hotel management reported on the hotel’s finance and operation.
Before Mr. Wu resigned from the Group, he was responsible for
Group’s property investment in Macau.

Senior Management

Mr. KWOK Tsz Kit, aged 47, became a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in December 2019 in operation of the Group’s newly
developed hospitality business. Mr. KWOK, founder of “HOMY”
budget hotel chain, is a pioneer in budget hotel segment of the
hospitality industry with comprehensive knowledge and market
sensitivity. He has been appointed by the HKSAR Home Affairs
Department to become a member of the Advisory Panel on Licensing
of Hotels and Guesthouses for 2020 to 2023 representing the hotels
and guesthouses industry. As a director of Hong Kong Association of
Hostels, Mr. KWOK committed to foster the long term development
of the guesthouse industry and often stands up to voice out to the
respective authorities expressing collective views on government
policies relevant to the industry as well as its practitioners.

Mr. KWOK oversees the Group’s hospitality business operation and
development.

Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 53, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 29 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.
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Ms. Wong Yim Tsui Amy, aged 61, joined the Group in 1999 and
was promoted Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate
Affairs in 2005. She is tertiary educated in The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resources Management since 1991. Ms. Wong has over 30
years' human resources experience in various industries including
finance, retail and servicing and is responsible for the Group's human
resources management to cope with corporate planning for business
development.

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO; or (i) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i) RAEQABRED RIEBEKRD ZER
Company
Name of Number of
company in Ordinary Approximate
which ordinary shares/ percentage
shares/securities securities of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held held shareholding
REFBREZER FBEZER/ HABRREZHD
ESHE ERtE BEZATEH EHEHE B
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 5.93%
LHRRELE corporation (Note 1 and 3)
REthEEER Vi /N 19,329,195 5.93%
(P&E113)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 27.07%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
LA EER ARA] 88,275,577 27.07%
(KzE2%3)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia Beneficial interests The Company 3,064,000 0.94%
LIRGIA T oy 3o ARA] 3,064,000 0.94%
Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 5.93%
corporation (Note 1 and 3)
XEHEERES PA/NG] 19,329,195 5.93%
(BI3E1 %3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 27.07%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
R EER VN/NG] 88,275,577 27.07%
(PizE2 & 3)
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania  Beneficial interests The Company 8,930,087 2.74%
RAGELL BanER ZN/NG] 8,930,087 2.74%



Notes:

1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments
Limited.

2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited.

3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST

(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned by
ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of Fortune
Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued capital of which is vested
in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-administrators of
the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching), Conba Investments Limited (a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel)
and Ssky Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors of Barsmark Investments
Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited and ST Investments. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments Limited. Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(i) Interests in the Share options of the Company

Name of Director/
Chief Executive
BEE TETBAE
®E

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia
LB+

Date of grant of
share options

RLBRER D

14 September
2016

—E-R"FNA
+HA

19 September
2017

—T—tFNA
+8

3 October 2018
—Z-N\FETA=
H

16 October 2019
—E-hF+A
+5H

Exercisable period

T

14 September 2016 to
13 September 2026
—E-RENRATHBZE

—E-RENAATZ=H

19 September 2017 to
18 September 2027
“E—+EAATAEE

—E-+EAATNR

3 October 2018 to
2 October 2028
“E-N\F+A=ZHAEZ=
- N\F+AHZAH

16 October 2019 to
15 October 2029
ZE-NE+ATAREE
ZEZAFE+TATAA

(i) REXFTBREZEDS

Exercise
price per

Share (HK$)

BRITEE
(7B%)

0.732

0.732

0.698

0.698

0.395

0.395

0.25

0.25

Number

of options
outstanding
i RAT LR
RSB

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

3,260,000

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
BARARREZ
S

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

1.00%

1.00%



The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2022, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the
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Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above.

Long position in shares

Name

nE/EB

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1)
Barsmark Investments Limited (Fff3E1)

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1)
ST (79) Investment Limited (Pif3E1)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Fi{z1)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1)

BEREAR AR (MEL)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1)

Ssky Investments Limited (KfzE1)

Nature of interests

REME

Beneficial Interest

o s
BEnEn

Beneficial Interest

ER AL e
BEnfEs

Interest of controlled
corporation
A EE R

Interest of controlled
corporation
Pt EE R

Interest of controlled
corporation

A BN

2R AINE o

RG2EFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held total shareholding
P IR & HEEREZ
19,329,195 5.93%
19,329,195 5.93%
88,275,577 27.07%
88,275,577 27.07%
107,604,772 33%
(Note 2)
107,604,772 33%
(PH=E2)
107,604,772 33%
(Note 2)
107,604,772 33%
(P5E2)
107,604,772 33%
(Note 2)
107,604,772 33%

(Kfzx2)
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Name

nE/EB

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1)

Fortune Ocean Limited (Ht5E1)

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi (Note 3)
ARt RFrEe Lt (MEE3)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited

(Note 4)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited

(MisE4)

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Kt #54)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Fff34)

Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 4)

A EE R L (FfE4)

Nature of interests

BEME

Interest of controlled
corporation
TS EE RS

Beneficial Interest

B AL ddE N
Bl m

Interest of controlled
corporation
SREHEE S

Beneficial interest

e

EnkEs

53

Interest of controlled
corporation
gt e

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEHEE S

Interest of controlled
corporation
TS A EE S

Number of
shares held

PR &

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
UE#

784,125
784,125

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(BiF5E2)
50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

Approximate
percentage of
total shareholding

EREREZ

33%

33%

0.24%

0.24%

33%

33%

15.64%

156.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

156.64%



Notes:

1. Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are
both wholly and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited,
the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-
third by each of (i) Conba Investments Limited (a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel); (i) Fortune Ocean
Limited (a company the entire issued capital of which is vested in
Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-administrators of the
estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (iii) Ssky Investments Limited
(a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia).

2. These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially
owned by Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment
Limited.

3. Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi are co-administrators of the
estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, whose beneficial interest and interest
of controlled corporation in shares of the Company are entirely vested in
co-administrators.

4. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is
wholly-owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk
Lin is wholly and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital
of Szeto International Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Other than the service contracts of the Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit
Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui Wing, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr.
WU BinQuan. Three meetings were held during the current financial
year. Audit Committee had met with the management of the Company
and the auditors to review the final results, considered the significant
accounting policies, and discussed with the management matters
relating to the Group’s internal audit and internal control system
as well as to update the terms of reference of the audit committee.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee.
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From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2022, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) except for certain areas of non-compliance that
are discussed later in this report.

The Board believes that good corporate governance culture is
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value and formulate its
business strategies and policies. Corporate actions are carried out
by following the corporate value & spirit of “integrity, compliance and
care for stakeholders” in order to achieve continuous success and
sustainable growth.

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the Company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.

The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.
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The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises seven Directors, three
of them are women, more than half of the Directors are non-executive
and independent of management, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s
businesses. Three of the Directors are executive, namely Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and four of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui
Wing, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan (appointed on 21
October 2022). Each of Directors’ respective biographical details is
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
It is the opinion of the Directors that the Board has the necessary skills
and experience appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in
the best interest of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. LAU Pui Wing has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules,
the Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence to the
Company.

The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of diversity of Board members. While all Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company will ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.
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The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. ZAARERANEEZRZANMERNZ T/ o T
The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the R#EFH|AEFE TEKNERILLG - BiFE

Group, including the Board and senior management: EeRaMEEA

Female Male
i B
Board (as at date of this report) FEF(REARERH) 43% 57%
(3) (4)
43% 57%
(3%) (4%2)

As at 31 December 2022: RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H:
Senior management =BRERAER 67% 33%
2) 1)
67% 33%
(2%) (14)
Other employees HipgEE 69% 31%
(27) (12)
69% 31%
(27%) (12%)
Overall workforce FEEEE T Bk 69% 31%
(29) (13)
69% 31%
(29%) (134)

The women representations on the Board and the Group’s workforce EZ=&@RAEEETBKHNLUERERD A
are 43% and 69% respectively. The Board considers the current  43% K 69% - & £ & i = A& B IR B0 4 B
gender diversity of the Group is satisfactory. ZAk o
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The board believes that independent views and input can enhance the
Board’s decision-making process and therefore make fair and proper
decisions and corporate actions.

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board which, including but not
limited to, the composition of the Board and Board committees,
ensure the independence of all independent non-executive directors,
emphasis on independence in the decision making process,
compensation structure, availability of independent professional
advice and opinions. The Board will conduct a review annually
to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of the aforesaid
mechanisms.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Ms. TSANG
Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.
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The Board meets regularly at least four times each year and additional
meetings are arranged if and when required. The Directors play
an active role in participating the Company’s meetings through
contribution of their professional opinions and active participation
in discussion. During the year, the attendance records of individual
Director at the Board meeting, meetings of three Board Committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and the annual general meeting held on 31 May 2022 are
set out below:

EFeEFERLBTHNATHER  URE
TRBERZEEINSH EBERREEERE
BREHR2ENHREGEL2EAATEE - B
FRFEANEESHFEESTCSE  —HES
SZE(AEZEZES  REZESRF
ZEE)EEUAMPR - E-_—FRHA=+—H
BITHRFAFASHLBLERINOT -

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HEEBERE FETHEBRY

Annual
General
Meeting
Audit Nomination Remuneration held on

Board Committee = Committee Committee 31 May 2022

R-E-=§
EA=+-H
BTHRE

EX® ENZEE REZEE FHEES BEXE

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel DRRLE

(Chairman and the Chief (LEFITHEH)

Executive Officer) 4/4
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia LRt 4/4
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania kML + 4/4
Independent BUFHITEE

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit G 4/4
Mr. LAU Pui Wing EE S 4/4
Ms. HO Ting Mei Efaxt+ 4/4
Mr. WU BinQuan RpzkE

(appointed on (R=E==%1+A

21 October 2022) “t+—HEZMA) 0/0

= 2/2 11 11
3/3 2/2 11 0/1
3/3 = = 11
3/3 2/2 11 11
0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, according to the records
provided by the Directors, the individual training record of each
Director received for the year is summarized below:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel DR EE
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia A 8 20
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KRAAELZ L
Mr. HUI Yan Kit B E
Mr. LAU Pui Wing RS S A&
Ms. HO Ting Mei s a2+
Mr. WU BinQuan SR ESE

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with each
of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst other
things, their term of offices for a period of one year until terminated
by either party giving not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) to the Board by
giving due consideration to the criteria, including but not limited to
Board diversity, qualifications, experience, independence, reputation
for integrity and potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board before making recommendation to the Board. The
Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate
in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the candidate(s) by
interviews, background checks etc.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three members, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. HO Ting Mei, Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr.
WU BinQuan (appointed on 21 October 2022). Ms. HO Ting Mei is the
chairman of the committee.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held two meetings, to review
the structure, size and composition (including the gender, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the existing Board members of the
Company to enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the
business of the Group steadily and appointment of Mr. Wu BinQuan
as independent non-executive director of the Company.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, Ms.
HO Ting Mei will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. Mr. Wu BinQuan who has been appointed as independent
non-executive Director by the Board on 21 October 2022 will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible
will offer himself for re-election. Mr. HUI Yan Kit was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company in July 2004. He
has been the independent non-executive Director of the Company for
over 18 years.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2022, the Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting Mei
and Mr. WU BinQuan (appointed on 21 October 2022). Mr. HUI Yan
Kit is the Chairman of the Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.
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&) In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior
managements of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration
packages for Directors of the Company. The recommended
remuneration packages have been approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of five members, namely, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia (Executive Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
(Executive Director), Ms. SZE Tak On (Financial Controller) and
Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy (Vice President of Human Resources &
Corporate Affairs). The Executive Committee shall normally meet on
a monthly basis and in any event no less than quarterly. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Ho Samuel is the Chairman of the Committee.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (ii) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.
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The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises of four members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2022,
the members are Mr. LAU Pui Wing (the Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan (appointed
on 21 October 2022) all of whom are not involved in the day-to-day
management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and associated procedures, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and
auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings, during which the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2022 were reviewed as well as to update the written terms
reference of the Audit Committee. Please refer to the table set out in
the section “Board Practices” of this report for the attendance record
of individual Audit Committee members. All these meetings were
convened in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

° state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to 62.
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The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (i) whistleblowing
policy and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity. The procedures
enable the Whistleblower to report the possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Group directly addressed to relevant personnel.

BDO have been appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
audited by BDO.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, BDO, the external auditor of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:

Audit services % B8R 7S
Non-audit services IERZBAR TS
Total: =X

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.
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The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. The internal control
systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and the
risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board has engaged a consultant company to conduct internal
audit function in order to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems during the year and is of
the view that the systems of risk management and internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2022 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in
safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 31 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents in 2022. In view of certain amendments to the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda, a special resolution
approving the adoption of new bye-laws of the Company is proposed
to be passed by the shareholders of the Company at the 2023 annual
general meeting to be held on 2 June 2023.
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In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the issued shares of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting
will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.

Overall, the Company considers the shareholders’ communication
policy of the Group to be effective and adequate. The Company
will continue to review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy by shareholders’ feedback from
the above channel.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE - +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 178, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.8, 4(b) and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be HK$128,200,000 at 31 December 2022.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties to support management’s estimates. The valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment, including recent market information
about prices for comparable properties with potentially significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

We identified valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significant balance of investment properties to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and that significant
amount of management judgement and estimation being required in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

- evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property
industry; and

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used and the resultant calculations.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai
Practising Certificate Number P06158

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o TN &S

for the year ended 31 December 2022 * #Z —FE - —F+—-HA=+—HIFFF

2022 2021
—E—-= —ZT=—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FtaE BT T BT
Revenue &= 5 36,381 36,492
Cost of revenue I &5 A AR (18,920) (23,700)
Gross profit ER 17,461 12,792
Other income HAunugA 5 13,438 7,212
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets  2AF{EzF ABZ 2
at fair value through profit or loss MBEE2 N NTE
(B518) M (11,410) 122
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment KEWME 2 ANFE
properties (B518), Wz 15 (2,800) 900
Administrative expenses THAX (36,369) (29,136)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEZREEE 14(c) (1,993) (3,383)
Finance costs BhE R AN 7 (5,570) (3,317)
Loss before income tax BR TS B AT &S 18 8 (27,243) (14,810)
Income tax (expense)/credit B (%) R 9 (90) 498
Loss for the year REEEE (27,333) (14,312)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 EWA
Item that will not be reclassified HESTEEF B2
subsequently to profit or loss: BmZ2EE
Changes in fair value of equity BEAFEFAEMER
instruments at fair value through IWAZRATEZ
other comprehensive income N EEE 580
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEBA
the year 580
Total comprehensive income for REEFEZEWBAEEE
the year (27,352) (18,732)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o TN &3

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « BZ—FE - —F+=-H=1+—HIFF

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihg=2 BET T ST IT
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEEEGRFERSE
Owners of the Company KARER A (27,266) (12,491)
Non-controlling interests IR (67) (1,821)
(27,333) (14,312)
Total comprehensive income for UT&ERMAEEZEK
the year attributable to: A%
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEDN (27,285) (11,911)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (67) (1,821)
(27,352) (13,732)
HK cents HK cents
b1l AL
Loss per share BREE 10
Basic R (8.36) (3.83)

Diluted g (8.36) (3.83)




g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5G BB IR LR
as at 31 December 2022 » R-FE—-—4#+_-H=+—H

Notes
i

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& E 14
Investment properties BEWME 15
Intangible assets EmEE 16
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFAEMEE

other comprehensive income WAZ B IEEE 17
Deferred tax assets BELETIREE 28
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18
Financial assets at fair value through BATERABRZ

profit or loss W& E 19
Trade and other receivables, deposits B R HEMEW AR

and prepayments E& RN RIR 20
Amount due from non-controlling interest & U 3E41% A% #E 25 5018 21
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIFH 22
Cash and bank balances e RRITHERR 23
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables =R 24
Other payables and accruals H At e AR R R FE AT SRIE
Amount due to a shareholder FEf —RIRE A 25
Contract liabilities aHaE 26
Lease liabilities HEAE 34(a)
Bank borrowings (secured) RITIEE (HEF) 27
Net current liabilities REEEFEE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBAE

2022

B
HK$’000
BET T

226,534
128,200
2,100

5,007
449

362,290

150

58,940

7,999
10
86,248
15,088

168,435

328
7,797
15,000
70
5,558
201,181

229,934

(61,499)

300,791

2021

T —F
HK$’000

BETIT

226,446
131,000

5,026
558

363,030

139

70,445

4,989
10
80,989
27,596

184,168

259
5,263
15,000
86
8,024
193,653

222,285

(88,117)

324,913
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A e B AR UL R

as at 31 December 2022 « R-—FE_-—4#+1+—-F=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Lease liabilities HERE 34(a) 5,460 1,791
Bank borrowings (secured) RITIEE(BEMT) 27 7,710 8,130
Deferred tax liabilities BEETRIBEE 28 6,693 6,712
19,863 16,633
Net assets EEFHE 280,928 308,280
EQUITY s
Share capital R 2 29 65,215 65,215
Reserves &1 28 215,433 242,718
Equity attributable to the owners of NATHEE AFELIER
the Company 280,648 307,933
Non-controlling interests IR 280 347
Total equity RS 280,928 308,280
On behalf of the directors REEE
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
= REAE
Director Director

EE EE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R RE A ) R
for the year ended 31 December 2022 « % —E - —4F+ _H=+—HIF/Z

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

VARAF - “F T ARER

ROEEAAEERS
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive Share Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation income option  Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
RAYE
TALM
2EUAZ
By ROEE  ERRR  EGRE HEEERE  BRERR  ZHER A HERER At
(Note 33(&) ~ (Note33(0))  (Note33(c)  (Note 33(d)
(o) (Witssp)  (Wtos)  (AEss)
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BETT eI BT BT BETT
At1 January 2021 RZ5=-%-A-8 65,215 158,221 146,189 846 (1,959) 3,110 (b1,784) 319,844 2,168 322,012
Loss for the year KEEER = = - - - - (12,491) (12.491) (1,821) (14312
Other comprehensive income Ah2ERA
-~ Changes in air vaue of equity -BATE AL
intruments at fair value through other ~ 2ERAZRA
comprehensive income TRZATEEY - - - - 580 - - 580 - 580
Total comprehensive income for TEERANNEE
the year = = = = 580 = (12.491) (11911) [1,821) (13732
At 31 December 2021 R=%=-%
tZR=1-R 65,215 158,227 146,189 846 (1,379) 3110 (64,275) 307,933 347 308,280
At1 January 2022 RZ§z§-A-8 158,221 146,189 (1,379 (64,275) 307,933 308,280
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (27,266) (27,266) (27,333)
Other comprehensive income Ah2EUA
-~ Changes in air value of equity -BATE AL
instruments at fair valu through other —~ 2EWAZRE
comprehensive income TA7 AV ESE) (19) (19 (19)
Total comprehensive income for IEERANNEE
the year (19) (27,266) (27,285) (27,352)
At 31 December 2022 WoB-zE
+ZA=t-R 158,227 146,189 1,398) (91,541) 280,648 280 280,928

The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period *
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

R|MEHR - W ERSRZ BERIERAMBENR
MERAZ [ -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GABenER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « BZ—FE - —F+=-H=1+—HIFF

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

2022
—s—-=
Note HK$°000
=2 BET T
REEBRELECHSRE
KR ER1S B AT &S 18 (27,243)

LA BIBEHFHE -
ME - BEREEHTE
14 432

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14 6,082
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment "EWEZ AFE
properties B8, (URES) 15 2,800
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets & A V(A A B2 2 B 7%
at fair value through profit or loss BEZANTE
&8, (W) 11,410
Bank interest income RITHEMA (1,987)
Dividend income from listed investments KB _FMi%&E 7 R EMA (8,237)
Finance costs BhE AN 5,570
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BERZE
equipment 2 Was (7,462)
Gain on written-back of amount due to [0 fE < JE IR AR A 2 R TE
non-controlling interest ZWEs =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FAREEERBEERE 14(c) 1,993
Operating loss before working capital NEEEESEFHA 2
changes K EIE (11,642)
Increase in inventories FEIE (11)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at &AL {EzT ABZE
fair value through profit or loss M EERD,/(38n) 95
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other BN E A EUERR -
receivables, deposits and prepayments e RIBNFIE
(3gm),/m (2,694)

Increase in trade payables, other payables
and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

AHEECRD), 1

BEEMERR - EMERN
BR 7K K FE T FRIE L 0 2,603

(16)

Net cash used in operating activities

BERTBIFER 2 F 5

(11,665)

2021

T —F
HK$’000

BEETIT

(14,810)

847
9,425

(900)
(122)
(2,262)

(3,250)
3,317

(4,374)
(56)

377)

1,774

44
41

(2,948)



g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

w/]‘

EHERE R

for the year ended 31 December 2022 * #Z —FE - —F+—-HA=+—HIFFF

2022
—E—-=

Note HK$’000
Iz BT T

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank

REXBELEZRERE

BEDE  BENMEE

HEWE - BEREZH
FrS 308

EEMRITERGEM),

(434)
8,349

(5,259)
1,671
3,237

(2,100)

10,000
(2,892)

(7,845)
(377)
(5,193)

(6,307)

(12,508)

27,596

deposits N
Bank interest received BUERTTHIE
Dividend received from listed investments B4R & FHE 2 %2
Acquisition of intangible assets B ER &
Net cash generated from investing REXBHRH 2 F5E

activities
Cash flows from financing activities FEXBELEZHLSRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEBMB A 35
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITEE 35
Repayment of principle portion of the EEHERERSHY

lease liabilities 35
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEBBENTE 35
Loan interest paid BENERFE 35
Net cash used in financing activities BEXEBATFES 2 FRE
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{“%

cash equivalents W), nF
Cash and cash equivalents at F“ }EJ HeBRE£E

1 January REeEEY
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-A=+—8%2

31 December ReRESZEEY
Analysis of the balances of cashand RERELEEY>

cash equivalents Ao
Cash and bank balances as stated in iR E B RR RS R 2

consolidated statement of financial Ve MIB1THE S

position

2021

T —F
HK$’000

BEETIT

11,480
3,676
3,250

18,354

(2,588)

(8,230)
(682)
(2,735)

(14,135)

1,271

26,325

27,596

27,596
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A5 A 5 3R MY AR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « EZE -E - —#+ - H=1+—HIFE

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is at Unit 903, 9th Floor, Capital Centre, 151

Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 32. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as

“the Group” hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest

thousand (“HK$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to
178 have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approved and authorised for issue by the

directors on 30 March 2023.
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(a)

(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and HKFRS 16 Leases

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The directors of the Company consider that these new
or amended HKFRSs has no material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior period and/or accounting policies.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

(b)

B2 T —Ff - H=1—HIFE

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2
HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

2023

2024

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current?
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction'

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after a date to be determined
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(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2022

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 require entity to recognise
deferred tax on particular transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable
and deductible temporary differences. The proposed
amendments will typically apply to transactions such as
leases for the lessee and decommissioning obligations.
According to the amended guidance, a temporary
difference that arises on initial recognition of an asset or
liability is not subject to the initial recognition exemption
if that transaction gave rise to equal amounts of taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 require material accounting
policy information to be disclosed in financial
statements rather than significant accounting policies
and provide additional guidance in deciding which
accounting policies should be disclosed. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

The directors anticipate that all of the relevant
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. The directors are
currently assessing the possible effect of these new
and amendments standards on the Group’s results and
financial position in the first year of application. Except
for the above amendments which may result in changes
in disclosures for accounting policies in the financial
statements, those new and amendments to HKFRS that
have been issued but are not yet effective are unlikely
to have material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position upon application.

AL (SR AIRAF

(b)

SRR

A5 G 5 3R M AR

B2 T - —Ff - H=1—HIFE

C 28 (B R A A # R AR
CHE:E R L6 )
BRETEUNF125 285
HERRZELENEENE
EHEEARIELERE

FRGHERFI12R BT E
KEBAFEXZBEABELTH
H - BEXSRUGHEREE
ERE S B ERT & AR
ERMEEE - ZRETBEE
RARABANHERRRER
EX5 - RELKEFTIES -
ROEEMETEIBRRT R
AT EEEE - MEEX
BERNEERARES 2 T
HEZBRTNERRRERRR

ERETTERE1R 2B
REBMBREENELR
HE2RETHRNNE

BFREGEAFIR BT ERK
RARNMBHREATREETES
AABRER > MIEHEREGE
B YHERERBER LS
AR EEE RN ES
BREMBRELENEHREE2
MZETNEREBRSEAR
SETBOREE 2 T Ve ft4E55] -

SR A A QM FEK
RAKERAMHEREREH
BREERENEFTEREPR
o BERENARFNAT X
REFTEARERAEFHASE
BRERTBRANEER
& o R MBI R REERTH
BRETEROBELREH
S - % B IR MR R AR E
A ERERTEEM B RS ER
TARARERERKERNERD
RXENPHIRREREATE -



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2022

A5 A BB R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « EZE -E - —#+ - H=1+—HIFE

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1

Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$27,333,000.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$61,499,000. Out of which, there were secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$198,301,000 were
in breach of a financial covenant under the relevant
facility agreement and this entitled the relevant bank
to demand immediate payment from the Group (note
27) and a shareholder loan of HK$15,000,000 without
fixed term of repayment (note 25), while the Group
maintained the pledged bank deposits and cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$86,248,000 and
HK$15,088,000 respectively.

These events or conditions may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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3.1

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared a going concern basis
as the directors considered that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet in full its working
capital requirements and financial obligations during
the next twelve months after the reporting period. The
events that have been considered include the following:

(i)

(i

(i)

A shareholder has confirmed to provide an
undertaking not to recall the shareholder loan
until the Group has the ability to repay;

The Group has obtained the approval from its
banker to revise the related loan covenants for
bank borrowings in January 2023;

The Group has renewed with its banker for the
bank facilities of approximately HK$228,482,000
in January 2023; and

The Group would consider disposing of certain
investment properties to provide further funding
when the liquidity needs arise.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.2

B2 T —Ff - H=1—HIFE

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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3.2

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities and
assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interest either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by another HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments, in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.2

B2 T —Ff - H=1—HIFE

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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3.3

3.4

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the end of the reporting period retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Foreign currency (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or
at the average exchange rates for the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

3.4

S ()
BRAFENIINERZIFEE
REREBEAFEERERZ
EXEHRE  AE/RAFE
ZBEBDINER o AINEIRE
SERAEFTEZIFEREB T
SEMRE -

REATHHRERT - ABRE
RERTRARAEEE2REHZ
B R 2 W2 WO E S 2 R B
BRI EBREEE - B
ENRBECEBEHR LT
ERHWSEE - WARZH
ERXZAHERZER 3
&M FHE R (RER%H
MZERYE|EBE AR ) BB
B NRBFEHZEME
REREBEEBAERER
w2 RERET O RRG

EHERINER - BEEHA
BIYRBELERHALER
BRERNERZRFINEE
B EEFOBREBERKRAME
REEZEHED



3.5

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

= does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 157).

The Group recognised revenue as the following basis:

(a) Revenue from rendering of hair styling services
is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and transferred over time. There is only
one performance obligation. In general, there is
no credit term offered to the customers which is
consistent with market practice.

(b) Rental income under leases arrangements is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

(c) Service fee income in relation to hospitality
services is recognised when the relevant services
are provided to the customers.
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3.5

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Revenue from rendering of property project
management services

The Group has determined that there are
significant integration of different elements
underlying a property management contract and
thus such contracts are considered to contain
only a single performance obligation. In addition,
the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. Accordingly, the revenue
from these contracts are recognised over time.

When the outcome of a performance obligation
in the property management contract can be
reasonably measured, contract revenue and the
associated contract costs are recognised over
time based on the progress of the respective
contract at the end of the reporting period.
The progress toward complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation of a property
management contract is determined by
reference to the contract costs incurred to date
as a proportion of the total estimated contract
costs. Contract costs and contract progress
are highly correlated for property management
contract.
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3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(9)

Revenue from rendering of property project
management services (Continued)

When the outcome of a performance obligation
in the property management contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered.

Contract modification (i.e. variation order)
are recognised when they are approved by
customer. Generally modification to a property
management contract is not accounted for as
a separate contract. Contract modification is
accounted for as if it were a part of the existing
contract and, therefore, form part of a single
performance obligation that is partially satisfied
at the date of the contract modification. The
effect that the contract modification on the
contract sum and on the Group’s measures of
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation, is recognised as an
adjustment to revenue (either as an increase
in or a reduction of revenue) at the date of
the contract modification (i.e. the adjustment
to revenue is made on a cumulative catch-
up basis). For approved modifications where a
change in price has not been agreed and other
claims, they are accounted for following the
requirements in relation to variable consideration
that the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is
constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
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3.5

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue and other income recognition

(Continued)

(9) Revenue from rendering of property project
management services (Continued)
If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount of
the consideration under the contract, a provision
is recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy for onerous contracts as set out in note
3.18.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the property project management works
under such services contracts but yet certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed
by customers. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is certified and invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date, then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.
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3.6

3.7

B2 T —Ff - H=1—HIFE

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each of the reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

useful life

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

useful life

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

Leasehold land and buildings

Right-of-use for other properties
leased

Motor vehicles

useful life
Leasehold improvements 10 - 38 /5%
Furniture, fixtures and office 20 - 33 %

equipment
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3.7

3.8

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant
lease.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (See note 3.9).

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.
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Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of the reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at
the date of change in use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and the Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3.9

3.10

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Leases

(@) Accounting as a lessee
All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liability. The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group presents lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.10 Leases (Continued)

(b)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
properties to a number of tenants. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

3.11 Financial Instruments

(a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments
Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the end of the reporting period: and
(i) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using simplified approach under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amount due to non-controlling interests, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

3.11 €@TR(E)

(c)

MBRE
AEBETREELD
BRBEMBAEBD
B mRAVEFARR
M BRENF R
B8 - REBHEKAF
ENMBRABMIER
FERMELENERE
ERAGE -

B KA G B B9
HRIE

12 B SH X N 5T 8 R0 B %
BEEREXENK
R EMEA R RE
AHER - B IR RRE
mE - HEBRGBERR
TIEE  HERERER
M BOE 12 85 KA 5
B - ERMNBRXNIE
P HER ©

ERERLERARE
BHBRET  BWEXE
BREE AR -

BRSO
BERANE AR ERH
BESMBABEHENK
Kt A B R o B A
BWALMBRZZT
o BEREMERREBY
BEESLRABENFH
2 (2038 ) 858 HA ]
AR MEFARKRE I
R F = -

BRATA
ARABBETZBEATA
2 E WEBLZ T8 SRR
BEBITRAAR -



for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the
ECLs provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in note
3.11 (b); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

3.12

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and consumable
stocks and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.13 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.
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3.13 FiEBzastEE(H)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the average rates that are expected
to apply to the taxable profit or tax loss of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse. The determination of the average tax rates
requires an estimation of (i) when the existing temporary
differences will reverse and (i) the amount of taxable
income in those years. The estimate of future taxable
income includes (i) income or loss excluding reversals
of temporary differences; and (ii) reversals of existing
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.
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3.13

3.15

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share premium

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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3.16 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.17 Share-based employee compensation

(Continued)

Share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each of
the reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.
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3.18 BERIREE

3.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at
the end of each of the reporting period and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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3.19

3.20

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income or
deducted in the related expenses, as appropriate, in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other income, rather
than reducing the related expense.
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3.21

B2 T —Ff - H=1—HIFE

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset maybe impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

3.22 Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(i

(ii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(il

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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3.22 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financing plan assessed as detailed in note 3.1 to these
consolidated financial statements. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this assumption
is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period
are as below:

(a)

(b)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for grouping of various customers that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group’s historical observed default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At the end of each of the reporting
period, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in forward-looking information
are considered. For the assessment on the ECLs on the
trade receivables, refer to note 37.5 for details.

Estimated fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment
properties were revalued at the end of the reporting
period by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgment, the
Group considers latest completed transactions and
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
of the reporting period.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, refer to note 15.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment is estimated using the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposals and its-
value-in-use. If the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The determination
of recoverable amount based on value-in-use
calculation incorporates a number of key estimates
and assumptions about future events and therefore,
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making these key estimates
and judgments, the directors take into consideration
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period
and appropriate market and discount rates. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions entered into by the
Group. Future changes in the events and conditions
underlying the estimates and judgements would affect
the estimation of recoverable amounts and result
in adjustments to their carrying amounts. For the
assessment on the recoverable amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, refer to note 14 for
details.

AL (SR AIRAF

SRR

A5 G 5 3R M AR

B2 T - —Ff - H=1—HIFE

E T RERR 2 EERF(R)

(c)

M - BERREGERE

REBFEYE - BELRE
ERAEFABETR © WEFHE
FRTR > RIARXFERHE
AR REREBEZEEEMR
AE--BERREBZAK
% - WYE  BENRRE
MBREES N E A KB & 58
AlgmRREBEREEZK
HEREZEFEESHE - AH
BEBEREDZTER - RIE
EREEFEETARLEEE
WhEBBARREMHNZ ARG
et k& - Rt FETHEE
- YRAIREERERTFESE
RER - (FHZFHERMAET R
HEE  BEEERIINKRKRE
ZERBEHRRFENTIHN
AURBEBENMHERBRE -
ZEMHFTHEREERTISE
BRAEEERIT LN HIE
FOE o fhET R M AT kIR 0 =
R MR R R ARG E
WEEEmba - AEHEHE
REEFLHAE - BEEARE
ME - BB RRE2AIRE S
B RHERHS - 2 E14 -
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5.

Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities,

is recognised during the year as follows:

Revenue

Rendering of hair styling services and
related product sales

Securities investments

Hospitality services income

Gross rental income from investment
properties

Interest income from money lending

Service income from property
management projects

Other income

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments
classified as financial assets at FVOCI

Exchange gain

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Government subsidies (Note)

Sundry income

Note:

In 2022, among the government subsidies, an amount of HK$911,000
(2021: nil) was government grants obtained from the Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the
Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses,
and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The Group has complied with the requirements
set out in the ESS for the year ended 31 December 2022.

WA g S FLA U A
FR - REAXEEETLEK2CHER
WEIT
2022 2021
—=E=-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BETIT
W 2%
IR E A LA ARTS M AB R E @

HE 16,314
FHEEE 3,006
IR G R A RS WA 11,982
RKE®REMEZHESRIA

4,303
REEBEZFBWA 6
REMEERER ZREKA
881
36,492
Hilr A
FRITH B LA 2,262
REEAFEFTAEMEER

AP BAEYHEEERN LT

&2 RBUWA 256
P& 3 Uz 3,095
HEWME - BEREZE 2 WS
B Eh (B E) 244
BRI A 1,355

7,212
B : MoE-—F BAFSBERSESE

911,000 (ZF=—%F : THERX) AEHS
FRIATER R BT R R E S T8 TR E
SRR EE ) BEREB LR
EFSMmEE - RERMRETSE - A5
EEA#EARSHIEAT SRS
WEREREATIHEERABRDE
BEKFUT - AEERBEE=ZE ==
F+-—A=t—ALFEEETEHAR
METEZRTE ©



g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

A5 G 5 3R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « #FE —FE - 41+ - F=1+—HIF&

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and review of these components’
performance. The business components in the internal
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating
decision makers are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following five operating segments:

Hair styling — Provision of hair styling and related
services and product sales in
Hong Kong

Money lending — Provision of commercial and

personal loans in Hong Kong

Property investments

Investing in commercial and
residential properties for rental
income and for potential capital
appreciation in both Macau and
Hong Kong

Securities investments — Investing in listed equity securities
in Hong Kong and equity-linked

investments in Hong Kong

Hospitality services

Provision of hospitality services in
Hong Kong

Property project Provision of property related
management project management service

REEHZ2RTAEERITEZTAH
BEREAEEEHARILND 2ER
DEA KRB ZEFBD KR Z A Y
BER  AEECBNELESHL
WEDEBEN AHFE2RTHATES
(EBL2ERERE) CEBAKE DD
REASEIZEMRRBREE -
AEBBER D RBATRELEDE

SRR - EESREELRTRE
BRI A R R

BE - ERSEEEER
LAER

NERE - RAWRAMREBZ
BEREENELNER
BEUARBEES
i

BHRRE — REBBLWBRAESFK
BEBREHBRE

BRERFS — ERBRRKER

R TR AR5

WEEE - REMFEBER
BER BERE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Segment revenue

7 BP Uk

—g-=
HK$’000
BT

0. MR E R (48)
JJ"B'BZ%XZ%?E
REBRAZBDHE D 2 WE R %

BT

Segment results

7 EPRE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= T —%F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BET T ST T

Hair styling SEARRET 15,085 (295)
Money lending BE 20 6 2)
Property investments MEILE 3,821 4,303 (7,076) (3,122)
Securities investments BERE 3,018 3,006 (8,391) 3,128
Hospitality services BRIE B R AR 14,437 11,982 3,721 (5,635)
Property project management %18 B & 12 - 881 (75) 91)

Unallocated income KoOBEUWA

Exchange (loss)/gain, net BE X (B518), /W 5

Corporate staff costs ~aEl B IR

Other corporate and EHRARRADERX
unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax M ETIS TR Es 18

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administrative
costs. Segment results excluded certain bank interest income,
dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI and net
exchange gain which arise from assets that are managed on
a group basis. Segment results also excluded corporate staff
costs and other corporate and unallocated expenses. This
is the measure reported to the executive directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

36,381 36,492

(12,118)

11,338
(7,735)
(7,330)

(11,398)

(27,243)

LB 2R WS ERERINERF
ZWss o

DEEBIEE D BRI EH,FRE
EZER > WES P RITEREAR
DHMEETERFEREAEEERZE
EEEZETRITNERA - BRF
B ARMEEKANTEEE 2K
BUWARE H Was 358 - 0 BBEA T
TEEBEARBIRAREM DB AR
AOEAX - IWHRARITEZTE2RZ
A BEDRERNA NG RR
i o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

2021
B —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T

Segment assets PEEE
Hair styling SRR ET 10,129 5,918
Money lending BE 2,157 114
Property investments MEKE 133.151 137,025
Securities investments BHERE 58,953 70,473
Hospitality services R JE R SR AR TS 219,354 220,768
Property project management YIEBEHER 19 71
Total segment assets DEP B E AT 423,763 434,369
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 449 558

Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFTAEMZERA

2 EE 5,007 5,026
Pledged bank deposits BIHIEITER 86,248 80,989
Short-term bank deposits EERERI TR AR - 20,598
Other corporate and unallocated assets ~ EM AT RADPREE 15,258 5,658
Consolidated total assets EHEERT 530,725 547,198

Segment liabilities PEHEE
Hair styling SEAURET 3,108
Money lending =31 10
Property investments L EL S 15,168
Hospitality services R JE K SR AR TS 40,580
Property project management MEIEE B 30 40
Total segment liabilities DEfBEERE 57,353 58,906
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFEIB & (& 6,693 6,712
Bank borrowings RITEE 164,819 i16/5,120
Other corporate and unallocated liabilities Hit AT RAKDEE E 20,932 18,180

Consolidated total liabilities At EERE 249,797 238,918
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVOCI,
pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits
which are managed on group basis and other corporate
and unallocated assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax liabilities and certain bank borrowings
which are managed on group basis, and other
corporate and unallocated liabilities.

Other segment information

Fair value (loss)/gain on

Interest income investment properties
RENEZATHE
HEWA (B8)/ i

2021
CECCE e

HK$'000 IS0
BETR LAV

2021
EF
HK§ 000
AETT

2022

2022
.

—_

HK$'000

BRI

Hair styling SRR

Property investments #1544

Hospitality services B /& Rt R - -

= 900
Unallocated AR 2,062 -
Total @t 2,262 900

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an impairment
loss on right-of-use assets amounted to HK$1,264,000 and
HK$729,000 were recognised for the segment of hair styling
and segments of securities investment and property project
management respectively (note 14(c)).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an impairment
loss on right-of-use assets amounted to HK$3,383,000 was
recognised for the segment of hospitality services (note14(c)).

ZE-C

HK$'000
BRTR

6. SrElRE R (]
’ﬁ“‘BEE&EF(%’)
SBEBRSIBE

2 BEE IR

- FEREEUOSKREFNEHDE
GRERIE - DT EFAEM
EEBAZHBEE  mAER
HEEEBEHEARTERR
RERITHERAREM AT R
ANMEERIN) + &

- MFMEREHIEEANER
(REEHRBAERRESEEE
BrZETROTEEREMAR
RARDEERABERIN)

Ht o EE#

Additions to specified

non-current assets Depreciation

Finance costs

EEFnRBEEZRE ik
2022 2021 2022 2021
CECCF el —EoCf ekl
HKS$'000 WV HK$'000 MEEIESON)
BRI WAl EETT RS

EEGRS

2021
Bk
HK$'000
BETT

2022

167 127 2,492
303 210 167 169
1,015 866 ; PALY)

4,801

1,485 1,263

4,085 2,054 1,713 1,685

5,570

HE-_ZT-_—_F#+-_A=+—H1
FE O FTHAREEREEBESK
1,264,0007T & /& #729,000 7T 2 BIl A

ERR A EAREBERERYEE
B &= bR (MizE14(0)) °

6,514

ME-FT--—F+-A=t—-AL
FIE o EAMAEREE R
3,383,000 R IR /5 T 35 BB 5 5 26
RHHE14(0) -



g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A e T B AR M RE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « BZ—FE - —F1+=-H=+—HIF&F

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. /¥ &R (48)
Geographical information HEER
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets EEIRDEE(ATBREMBEEY
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on FRBEE)CHEBUEDNREEEE
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location BRREMES D - BEZHEMNET)
of customers is based on the location at which the services BEERERHBRFE N EnNEZLE S
were provided or the goods were delivered. 9 0
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the UTNEETCIHERDEEZREE KK
specified non-current assets and revenue from external BN BEEZWHRZ oM R & B
customers, analysed by the geographical location. DHT) o
Specified Revenue from
non-current assets external customers
EEERBEE REMBEF 2 W=

Hong Kong (place of domicile) &% (Fi7EHh) 274,510
Macau SRS 82,324

356,834

Information about a major customer

None of the customers individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

2022
—Z-=
HK$’000
BET T

2021 2022 2021

B —F |t —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT T

33,934
83,791 2,447

EHE—BEXEEFNESR
REBEEZZT-_—_FR-_ZF=-_—F+=
A=+—BLFE BEREEF(h
NEB S FIZE10% A L -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. IEPER(4)

Disaggregation of revenue FHF W=
In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers TREZLE DB RIAERERH D 5
is disaggregated by operating segments and timing of revenue BEAHZWA - KRB EMEREZ U
recognition. Revenue from other sources are analysed in the WAIETRETHMN ©
table.
2022 2021
—g== T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue from contracts with EREEHkE
customers
Timing of revenue recognition — Over time  }{ 25t 37 % 6] — RE FF (2]
Hair styling services ERVRET RS 15,586
Hospitality services R JE R SR AR 7 11,982
Property project management services Y218 B E 12 RS 881
Timing of revenue recognition oz PEERIF [ — R R — 58
— At a point in time
Product sales under hair styling services SR8 5t RFETE N A= RN E 728
Revenue from other sources R H A RR 2z W
Rental income M BA 4,303
Interest income from money lending EBEMBEWA 6
Securities investments BERE 3,006
36,492
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RUERA
2022 2021
—E-_C —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Interest charges on bank loans RITEFRF BRAEZ 5,193 2,735
Interest charges on lease liabilities HEBERNEMX
(note 34(a)) (FfzE34(a)) 377 582

3,317
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

2021
—E-—4F
HK$’000
BEETIT

—E-C
HK$’000
BT

Loss before income tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets:
— Leasehold land and buildings
(owned assets)
— Other properties leased for own use
(under lease arrangement)
Exchange loss, net
Employee benefit expenses
(including Directors’ emoluments)
(note 11)
Gain on written-back of amount due to
non-controlling interest
Rentals received/receivable from
investment properties less direct
outgoings of HK$458,000
(2021: HK$349,000)
Short-term leases expenses

BT ST AT B BN G,
(FGFA)TFIR B &5 :

1% B AR &
e
L E Y
FRAEEE
— et kigs
(BBEE)
—HAENHEAEMmE
(BEZHT)
Tl i Sh
EERAIFZ
(BIEESHH)
(B¥3E11)
B [O] FE A SR B M 25 2 U ES

Bl YR EMERSRE

%57 B #458,0007T

—E-—F:

B #349,0007T)
CHEERY

659

847

(3,363)
456

(3,954)
456
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2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEETIT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax (note 28) EERIR (MI5E28)

BIEIRTE — F AN EH

(498)

(498)

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, which is
calculated at tax rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for a
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the financial
statements as the Group did not derive any estimated
assessable profits in Hong Kong for the current and prior
years.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2021: 12%)).

AEEBBERREEFNESHR  BER
RBEBEERERB % FIEZ16.5%H
RE - HEAEEN—HWE QA
BRoh - Z B R AT SRR AR
MEBERER ZWBRAR BB
2,000,000 7T ¥ [ 23 51 % 7112 8.25% Y
TR - R T ERBOE TR 16.5%
M FREBH

HRASEAFERBEFELER
BEELEMMGEERTEHN - I
BRI BEREMELEENEHEE -

RBORFIBG AR KRG - ORI
AR R 2 B A RIZAR12%(=
T 12%) ZRMEBNRPIFE
Bi o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9. AR (&%) ()
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation between income tax expense/(credit) and HEARMERAENFREHRMAST (K
accounting loss at applicable tax rate is as follows: %) e EEZ BAYERAT ¢
2022 2021
—E—— —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Loss before income tax KRETS TR & 18 (27,243) (14,810)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% BEBEEHE16.5%(ZF
(2021: 16.5%) in Hong Kong ——fF 1 16.5%):TEHE (4,495) (2,443)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EEM?H%E [R5 & 2 T
operating in other jurisdictions RAEIZ T RAHEZE 232 205
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HHAS 2 Mg & 2,812 915
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEARRMA 2 R E (2,456) (503)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax RIERSELERBEE 2
assets TRIAEE 4,183 2,293
Tax effect of other temporary differences KRHEREMERF =2
not recognised MR 2 (186) (965)

Income tax expense/(credit) Frisfifx/(E®) 920 (498)
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10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. &ME1E
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of AAREEAEBEEREREBETR
the Company is based on the following data: BATEEBTE ¢
2022 2021
—=E_— - —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss for the year KEEEE
Loss attributable to owners of the Company XA Bl#EA A JE(L &R (27,266) (12,491)
‘000
T &
Number of ordinary shares ZEBRRE
Weighted average number of ordinary M ESREAAREENE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating TR NAE 2
basic loss per share 326,077 326,077
For the purposes of calculating diluted loss per share for the RIABHET-__FR-T=-—F
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no adjustment has +-—A=+—BLFEZ2EREES
been made as the exercise of the outstanding share options B BEELAR  ARITERITE
has an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. ERESHERERNBEEERESY

& o
=
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2022 2021
== —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT

Salaries, allowances and staff benefits
Commission e
Retirement benefit costs (note 12)

e FMRBETREAN

BARBRIRA (M EE12)

21,861 22,436
319 452
545 585

22,725 23,473

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions for the directors, amounted to HK$545,000
(2021: HK$585,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2021: nil).

REFEREFIEAESTEEERMA
Mz BFIERBEEG(B=F
TETF+_A-—BRER)  A&E
2B ELBAZTEA S EN R E
AT E([BRERE ) AHE
REMEEBFELER - REBESE
g EERHREESBEHANEERM
B A 5% A AT B - RS A
HERALRZARR - 2 AEEEA
FRE-T-—OFA—-BEDKR
78 25,000 7T 15 % # ¥ 30,000 7T ° 58
Bt BIHRI RS -

AEBZABSTIRFIAE(BIES
NEZEEZHR) BBEMS5450007T (=
T~ —4F : B¥585,0007T) ERAE
EERAAY - BIEWMEHKH
BAOREB 7 RBHRFKFE(ZE=—
&) o



126

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A e T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « BZ—FE - —F+=-H=1+—HIFF

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and
payable to the directors are as follows:

13, 3E F P e I T 4% o s B\

+

(@) E=M=
ENRENES M BTN
-

Salaries and Retirement
Fees allowances benefit costs Total
ok HEeREE EBHRERRE it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT T BT T
Year ended 31 December BE-_E-_—_F+-8
2022 =+-BLEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel LRREAE
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia LREALLT
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania &EiEL+
Independent Non-Executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAGREE
Mr. Lau Pui Wing EES
Ms. Ho Ting Mei Rt
Mr. Wu BinQuan (note) R 2 kA W)
Year ended 31 December HE-E--&£4+-8
2021 =+-BLEEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel s iR ) A A 240 3,720 12 3,972
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia ~ HRE#HI £ 600 3,024 30 3,654
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania sKBR{EZ + = 3,097 58 3,155
Independent Non-Executive BV {TES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FFABRSEE 60 - - 60
Mr. Lau Pui Wing B bes 60 - - 60
Ms. Ho Ting Mei AIEEz+ 60 - = 60
1,020 9,841 100 10,961
Note:  With effect from 21 October 2022, Mr. Wu BinQuan was Mizx: BEZT=—=—F+A=+—H

appointed as independent non-executive director.

g RMEELEZERBY
FHMITES -



(a)

(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include three (2021: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note (a) above and the emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid individual
are as follows:

AL A (SEM) HRAH

(a)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

BRIRREFIRA

¥ ERREAMER

SRR

A e T B AR M RE

B2 T - —Ff - H=1—HIFE

EEMe(E)

HE-_ZT - —E-—F
+ZA=+—HULFE UE&
EEHELXREREEHNE -

HE-_ZT-_—_FRk=-ZF=-—

+-A=+—RLEE " X&
B kT RS FERE
EEBMAREB S INALRE
B RE  SEABB

f& -

TEBRSHFMAL

HE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—
BIEFE AEERE&RSH
MALBRE=ZZ(ZT=_—4%:
=F)EF AMEe2HR LEX
M@z 2R B RERS
BRTIME(ZEZ—F : WE)

BERFMATZBMENT
2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT
2,632
82

2,714
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13. =M 4 M2 B e
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS + (45)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEESHMAL(E)
The emoluments of this remaining two (2021: two) BRTIME(ZE=_—F: WE)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands: EERFMATZZBHENFUT
#HE

Number of individuals

A

Emolument bands B <& 6 [E]

Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z = B1,000,0007T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 75#1,000,001 T2
71,500,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 75 #1,500,001 T E
7 #2,000,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 * #ZE —E— —4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. #3% - B&E X &t

Right-of-use assets
fFREEE
Owned assets Under lease arrangement
HREE HEZAT
Other Furniture,
Leasehold properties fixtures
[and and leased for Motor  Leasehold and office Motor
buildings 0Wn use vehicles  improvements  equipment vehicle Total
i
HENKER BEXER
RELHRET  CEfNR RE ERNRERE  BOERR b it
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK§000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS 000
8T BETT T 8T AT T AR
Yearended 31 December 2021 BE=E--E+ZAZt-RLEE
Qpening net carying amount SIERRE 21799 17,330 - n 83 - 240742
Efectoflease modificaton fEknze = (6%3) = = = = (63
Adtions e - - - - 5 - 5
Depreciaton & (1,201) (6,224) - (576) @r) - (10,272
Impaiment WE = (3,389) - - - - (3383
Closing net carrying amount HEETFE 220,59 5,050 - 104 604 - 226,446
At 31 December 2021 AE--F+-f=1-H
Cost it 23962 21,814 141 3904 4306 7% 260,922
Accumulated depreciation and EERAE
mpaiment (3,364) (22,764) (141) (3710) (3,702 (79) (34,.476)
Net carying amoun FESE 20598 5,080 - 19 604 - 26446

Year ended 31 December 2022

BECR_ZEToAt-RLER

Opening net carrying amount BIRARE 220,598 5,050 226,446
Effect of lease modification fighinze - 6,007 6,007
Additions #E - 2,051 2,485
Disposal HE (887) - (887)
Depreciation it (1,189) 4.893) (6,514)
Impairment (note (c) HE(KE(C) - (1,999) (1,999)
Closing net carrying amount BREATE 218522 7212 206,534
At 31 December 2022 RoB--E+-A=1-7
Cost TS 222,592 30,491 2,755 4,569 261,343
Accumulated depreciationand ~ E3tHERHE

impairment (4,070) (23.219) (2,595) (3,929) (34,809)
Net carrying amount EERE 218,522 1212 160 640 206,534
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

14.

Y2k ~ WE St (7E)

B3

(@)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with
remaining lease term of:

— Over 50 years
— Between 10 and 50 years

— HBiR504F
—10F E50F A

Other properties leased for own use,
carried at depreciated cost

Hitbz

BITERATIRRBIATHYZ
HE i BT R HA R

BIERASIRZAEUHKERZ

As at 31 December 2022, leasehold land and buildings with net carrying
amount of HK$214,596,000 (2021: HK$215,597,000) was pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in
note 27(c).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors review the Group’s
property, plant and equipment to determine whether impairment
indications existed. When indicators of impairment are identified, the
directors assess the recoverable amount of those assets. For the
purpose of impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
each of the operating segments as disclosed in note 6 or each individual
hostel premise is identified as a separate cash-generating unit (‘CGU”).
Corporate assets are allocated to each of the CGU and included as part
of the carrying amounts of the CGU for comparing to their recoverable
amounts.

ZHEREAESNE I NERREERE
FEIMOT

2022 2021
—E-C—F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
214,596 215,697
3,926 5,001
7,212 5,050
225,734 225,648

RZTZ=ZF+=-A=+—08 " REF
H A5 %214,506,000T( ZF = —4F :
7 215,597,000 7T ) K FE & + i R 42
FEERARFAEENRITHEZE
R E— RN F27(c) °

RBERR - EFFHARENDE -
BERRBENEEREFERELR
RBBIRELSRE  EFTEZEEE
ZAREEE - ME - BERREZ
WEEME - RHEeMRENS &8
DEMREE—IREBWEEBR BT RR
CEABM([REELBM]) - bEE
ENAEEERSELEN - WIHER
SESBEMREEN /D - ALRE
AU E 2 o
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impacted the Group’s hair styling business, the recoverable
amount of a hair salon of HK$ 6,431,000 was less than the
carrying amount of HK$7,695,000 included in other properties
leased for own use under right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment (including allocated corporate
assets) as of 31 December 2022. Accordingly, impairment loss
of HK$1,264,000 in respect of property, plant and equipment
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-
use calculations, which comprise cash flow projections of this
CGU prepared based on the financial budgets approved by
the management. The period covered by the financial budgets
is 3 years. The key assumptions used by the management
in the value-in-use calculations of the CGU include (i) sales
growth rates ranged from 5% to 8%; (i) gross profit margin is
maintained at similar level as have achieved during the current
year; and (iii) pre-tax discount rate of 10.5%.

Securities investments and property project management
businesses

In view of the loss results from the segments of securities
investments and property project management, the
recoverable amounts of these segments were estimated to be
lower than their carrying amounts of HK$729,000 in aggregate
included in other properties leased for own use under right-
of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
(including allocated corporate assets) as of 31 December
2022. Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$729,000 in respect
of property, plant and equipment was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Notes: (Continued) sk - (&)
() (Continued) () (%)
0] Hair styling business 0] E SR E T
As a result of the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic which has B A COVID-19 K 17w #%5 48

HAEEMBR R EBER
¥8 RNZTZ—F+=A
=+—R8 Z2RRzZAKES
K75 56,431,000 7T 16 7A 5 F 4
BEBETHEASARZEM
MEREMYE - BERZHE
(BEESECEEE)NER
{E#%%7,695,0007T ° Fitk - ¥
¥ WEREEREBRBE
1,264,000t EREE=_T ==
FE+ A=+ HILEENELE
HIBHERAMER -

A U [ & B TR AR AR E AT
EMEE BRLREELS
NIREEEBH AN KREBEE
FrimE MRS RETRA - B
FEEMERENPEA=F - &
BERReELEMZFEAE
EFEMAZEEZBRERE ()
HERREENT5%%E8% : (i)F
R H R EREE RS K
I R (ii)BRFIATAEIR %10.5% ©

EFBRERMFERBEEER

HRBHFBRERMEBEEER
DEREERBEIE - Bt
SN E & EBERE
RZFE-_—F+=-A=+—H
REBREE A H B ¥ 729,000
(GFAFEAREENEMERE
HEMEREMME BE K
SHE(BEEIMEEELE))
At - W% - BB RSEOR
{E/E518/8%729,0007TE REE
—EF+ZA=+t—HIE
FENGRAIBERPHER -
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Notes: (Continued)
(Continued)

()

(i

(ii)

Securities investments and property project management
businesses (Continued)

The recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculations, which comprise cash flow projections of
each of these CGU prepared based on the financial budgets
approved by the management. The period covered by
the financial budgets is 2 years. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 10.5%. Other key
assumptions in the value-in-use calculations of the CGUs
include budgeted revenue.

These assumption were determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations in respect of
the market conditions as well as the economy and political
changes which have impact on the CGU results. In addition,
to mitigate the deviation of the projected financial performance
resulting from the uncertainties about future events, the
management has considered multiple scenarios in projecting
the revenue during the forecast period, each of which are
probability weighted. The pre-tax discount rate used reflects
the specific risks relate to the business and industry in which
this cash-generating units are engaged.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of
hostel premises amounted to HK$5,050,000 in the Group’s
hospitality services was less than the carrying amount of
HK$8,433,000 included in other properties leased for own
use under right-of-use assets. Accordingly, impairment loss
of HK$3,383,000 in respect of right-of-use assets for one of
the hostel premises was recognised in in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The recoverable amounts of the Group’s CGUs were
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which
comprised cash flow projections of each of these CGU
prepared based on the financial budgets approved by the
management. The period covered by the financial budgets is
1 to 2 years. The key assumptions used by the management
in the value-in-use calculations of the CGU included (i) sales
growth rates ranged from 4% to 22%; (i) gross profit margin
was maintained at similar level as have achieved during the
year ended 31 December 2021; and (iii) pre-tax discount rate
of 10.1%.

MeE (4D

()

(%)
(i

(il

BHREARMEBEETEEY
(%)

A Uz [l & 58 T AR AR (5 PR B (B 5T
HMETE  BESHRSELE
NRBEEEBHANMBREE
GRS RETER o B
BERMERENHEAMSE - &
AR IR & 7 = 788 & BR 31 A1 RS
WEAE105% - IR e EEL S
UZEREBETERMAZHt
FERZXBEEERE -

FZERREBBEBERRUAR
EREREReELEMER
BT ENTRIAREE KK
BB BHMAEE - b -
AEREREEARREMFOTRE
EMMEBMTRMNABEEZ
RE - B IR E N TR TR R 2R
MREHEEZBSREER - &
ZENBEHERMERRBER
FTARZBHRAMRE KRG
ZREELEBMMPREBR
TR ERR

RZEBE-Z—F+=RA=+—
B NEBEMHRERRERS
Y B B8 1) 3 2 A] 4R B b BB A B
5,050,000 7T 1K /A £ F #8 & B
BETHEUHBER 2 MY
HIBR I {E /5% 8,433,000 ° A
bt B — @R E 2 E A
¥ & R (B 5 1875 5 3,383,000
TERBEE-_T-_—F+=-A8
=t+—BLEFENKEBRER
R °

AEERGELBMAIKRE S
BOBRBEREENFEmME
T REREHRCELSBUNRE
& 1R FE 0 B R TE P A B
MRS METER - MEBRFEHEF
HMEMBBAE—ZEME - B2
EBRREeELEMZERER
SERAZEEBREE ()
HEERENT4%E22% ; (i)
EMNE@FREHRE T - —
F+ZA=+—BLLEERE
B K T 5 R (iii) B B A B3R
10.1% °




for the year ended 31 December 2022

AL A (SEM) HRAH

Fair value ATE

At 1 January n—H—H

Net change in fair value* NEEEFE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8

disclosed as “Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using a fair value
model and are leased to third parties under leases to earn rental
income, further details of which are set out in note 34(b).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2022 and 2021 by RAVIA Global Appraisal Advisory Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties has
been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. All of the fair values of the
investment properties at the end of the reporting period are level 3
recurring fair value measurement, which uses significant unobservable
inputs in arriving at the fair values. There is no transfer between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current year or
in prior year.

Fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are determined using
direct comparison approach. Fair values are based on recent market
information about prices for comparable properties with significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

SRR

A e T B AR M RE

BE—12

F_ A A=+ —HIFE

2022 2021
== —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
131,000 130,100
(2,800) 900
128,200 131,000

ERGAZERAREKZ [REWEZA
FEEER), W HE -

FEBZREMERARITEER TN
AERBREEEERTE=) - UER
HeRA - BEE-—THBERRME
34(b) °

ARBZREMKEAHR T
R-B-—Ft-A=t-AmBAa
A i B S R IR (A R
AARBARTS2RAE MG EEEHN
B o

FEEREMWEZATETE  ESR
RZBRFEER(EERBFEUBRSE
ERIFABRATENE) - RIREHR
MERENEZATERF=EBRTE
AFEFE  AEAFERESERAEKR
TAIBRBARE - RAFER E—F
E E—EBRE-_EzELEEE - IR
EEANEHE=E -

RZEZ—FR-ZFT=-—F+=A
=+—52”¥ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁig
o REETIIRMEIT AR AT LB Y
E%Zm%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁvmﬁ$%@%
¥R ARAEREHEAFE -



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2022

A5 A BB R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

B2 T —Ff - H=1—HIFE

MicE - ()

(d) (%)

HEGABERZFHEHIINT

Unobservable inputs

FAEZBARE

Range of
unobservable inputs

AUBRBARE 2 EE

Valuation
Properties Location Level technique
L/ES nE B fEER M
Residential Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison
properties approach
EEWE &k 3 HELEE
A retail shop Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison
approach
—MTEE B 3 HELEE
A retail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
—HZEE P 3 BHERLBA
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
WREYE R 3 HELBE
Residential property Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
EEME R 8 HELBE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

MMEE R LSRR 5 (E

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

Y ESEE Y i VL

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HMEER RS ETRHIE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HOEERRERIERHE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HOEBER R ETEEE

-7.5% t0 7.5%
(2021: -5% to 5%)

T5%ETE%( B4 :
-5%%5%)

-50% to 0%
(2021: -40% to 0%)
50%E0%(ZF=—F :
-40%Z0%)

-2.5% to 25%
(2021: 0% to 30%)
2.5%E25%(ZF=—F :
0%Z%&30%)

-15% to 0%
(2021: -15% to 0%)
-15%E0%(ZF=—F :
-16%%0%)

-5% to 10%
(2021: -5% to 15%)
S5%E10%(ZT=—%F :
5%ZE15%)

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparables would
result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best use of the
investment properties, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$43,000,000 (2021: HK$44,800,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further
detailed in note 27(c).

IAREMERA LB EZER R
HERMEZRSRERFTRGELEN
R mBIE 2 ATE -

R ETIRERE W &= R MR
EREtE  NEEERAGTEER -

(e) R—ZZE_=—F+=-A=+—H8 "  FAE
#4953 7%43,000,0007c(ZF=—4F : B
#44,800,00070) 2 & TIREMECES
REBESERITEEZER  BE#E—
FEBHRM 27 (0)
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2022 2021
—=_— —EB - —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST IT
Trademarks, at cost PR - AR E 2,100 -
During the year, the Group acquired certain trademarks at the FR - AEBCDWBERBAREEE
aggregate consideration of HK$2,100,000. The trademarks 2,100,000 7CHYVE THER - ZEHIRHE
together with the relevant property, plant and equipment HEME  BELRE(BIEFEAHESR
including right-of-use assets are included in the CGU of E)CBEERIRERRETFRENRSE
hospitality services and subject to impairment at least annually. Y BN TERVEEHIERE -
The Group’s trademarks have finite legal lives but are AEBEZEEERTEETFE
renewable upon expiry at minimal costs. In the opinion of the AREMEARERANEE - EFR
directors, the Group would renew the trademarks continuously B ANEFBAGRNIBEEERE - F
and has the ability to do so. There is no foreseeable limit to the FAEEESHr AANEBRELRSREA
period over which the trademarks are expected to generate SRERHEHAN M) TE B OHARR o (AUt -
net cash inflows for the Group. Therefore, the trademarks BERABETEEEREFHELETE
have been considered to have an indefinite life and are not i BEReFETRENH -

amortised, but tested annually for impairment.

2022 2021

—E—= T —F

HK$°000 HK$’000

AT T BT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, W&# 2 FHRAKRE -

at fair value BAFE 5,026
Financial assets at FVOCI represents listed equity investments BRAFEFAEMEEMBAZHEE
in Hong Kong, which are held for long-term and are non- EERBEFEEABEEEHE RS

trading in nature. B2 ETIRAIEE -

Fair values of these listed equity investments have been ZELFTRAKLREZAFED Fat

measured as described in note 37.1(v). 2 FEERKEES7.1(V) °
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18. INVENTORIES

)
\IF

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT

Consumable stocks

150 139

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to HK$752,000 (2021: HK$825,000).

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

B BET75200T (T - —F
7 ¥ 825,0007L ) < T ERR AN TER A
X st ABZ—_ZT_—_F+_A8
=+ BUEFEZHERAR -

7o FEFE AR 42 2 B &
ZE

Listed equity investments held for trading, #H{EFE &7 FHRAIKRE -

at fair value

2021

—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
70,445

Financial assets at FVTPL represents listed equity investments

held for trading, at fair value.

The fair value of the listed equity investments have been
measured as described in note 37.1(v).

BAVFEFABGZUBEERER
FEFEFFEEZ EMBRARKRE -

EFTBRARENRFEES BH T
37 1(v)FTiltat £ ©
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

20.

CEERN A R

Trade receivables EEYGEE
Other receivables, deposits and H 4th fE WBR RN
prepayments e RIERFIA

= ~ /I ﬁ—
K TE A #KIR
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
158
4,831
4,989

In general, no credit period is granted for its customers due to
the Group’s business nature.

The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade
receivables, net of loss allowance, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

—RimE  AARRENEHFEEL - 8
BRAASBEFPREEEH -

R|ER - EXRBRIEK(FNEREE
B 2R DM RBERRH T ¢

0-30 days 0&30H

31-60 days 31£E60H
61-90 days 61290H
More than 90 days %90 H

No loss allowance was provided on trade and other receivables
and deposits for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
nil) as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
based on historical experience. The Group determined that
there were no significant financial impact arising from ECLs
model under HKFRS 9 for all trade and other receivables and
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

2022 2021

—E-=F B —4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT IT

86

72

158
HRBREEEKERACEELERLE

ERANE RBEE-_T-__F+-A
St ALEREYEREXREME
WERFNRZEH RERBEB(ZF
—F B AEEETHMEEE
REAMEWIRFT AR RS RIEREY
BREERESR TR EEBER
AP BEEREAMBEE - AEEY
BRZEEHFHTAERR
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The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and no fixed

term of repayment.

Pledged bank deposits at the end of the reporting period
represent time deposits which are denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) with original maturity period of three months (2021:
one month). The deposits earn interest at fixed rates ranging
from 1.96% to 2.70% per annum (2021: 2.00% to 2.12% per
annum) and have been pledged to secure certain banking

facilities granted by a bank (note 27(c)).

Cash and bank balances include the following:

RIREBRRZ BEMRITFR - U
ARB(TARS DBz HBER
FRuEBHERA=ZEMA(ZE=—F :
—f@A) - ZEGFFTIEN T1.96% 2
270%(ZZF=—%F : 2.00%E2.12%)
METFMNERRAMNE - WEEIK
o LS —EETRE 2B TR
& (f3E27(0)) »

RERRITEBREIBEUATRE

2022 2021
—s=-= —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BRI

12,088 6,998
3,000 20,598

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS
Short-term bank deposit EHRITIER
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEE

15,088 27,596

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates. The directors consider that the fair values of
the short-term deposits are not materially different from their

carrying amounts because of the short maturity period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had short-term time
deposit amounting to HK$3,000,000 (2021: RMB16,837,000)
(equivalent to approximately HK$20,598,000), which had
original maturity of three months (2021: one month) and
earned interest income at interest rate at 3.72% (2021: 2.00%)
per annum. The amount of short-term time deposit as of 31
December 2022 and 2021 was included in “cash and bank

balances”.

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to HK$53,000 (2021:

HK$20,621,000).

RITASREBARTERNENFH
MEE - BHMEMERZHR - T5
BEREBABREFLME @ 1K
EEHEME RN EREFE o @R
RHEFRRERANZE  REEZRS
HEAFEERAETESAER -

R—ZFE-_—_F+=-A=+—8 ' &%
B 152 B F BT 3% &8 # 3,000,000
—E-—%: AR%16,837,0007T)
(R R #)7%5 % 20,598,0007T ) @ [REHA
RE=ZEA(ZZE=—%F: —@A)X&
FEWAEFNEIT2% (=T = —
F1200%)5tE -RZTEZ_FR=
T-—F+-"A=+—H EHFH
GEREBER [Be RRTHEHS] -

RBEMR - MARBFHEZEER
RITHEBRRBIEE3,000T (=T = —
- #B¥%20,621,0007T) °
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24. TRADE PAYABLES 24, ‘EFEMESTHRK
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis (based N EHIR  REBZEERNER
on invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows: ZEROMRBRZEBRENT -
2022 2021
—E_— - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
0-30 days 0&30H 243 187
31-60 days 31£260H 58 72
61-90 days 61290H 27 -
259
25. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 25, Jef}pesE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and no fixed term EEZEAEEM o REETE
of repayment. ZHAPR o
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. SHIEfE
The Group has recognised the follow liabilities related to AEBEBMIZUNTEEEANEE Y
contracts with customers: BE:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Contract liabilities arising from: EHEEXRE
Hospitality services R JE K SR AF AR 7S 86
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 26. ## A& ()
The movement in contract liabilities is as follows: AHBENEERNT -
2021
—E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January n—A—H 86 45
Revenue recognised during the year FAERA WS (49)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of [E RtHE 5 K 2435 AR 7% 78 W k18
billing in advance of hospitality services mEREHE BN 86
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 86
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract TEANEESRZ —RNNTUERN
liabilities are as follows: N
Hospitality services HRIE R SR F IR
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services BAETHEZREEERMER X
are rendered and advances are normally required before BEENEEREIEZEEEN - K/E
rendering services. Hospitality service contracts are for periods RFFEREEHEH —FAT I

of one year or less, or are billed based on the time incurred. RRELSREWE -
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 27. SATEE CHHAT)
2022 2021
—=_— —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Current liabilities nBAE
Portion of bank loans due for AR—FNEEZ
repayment within one year BITER 2B 198,872 157,719
Portion of bank loans due for repayment B SIEEREBIER Y
after one year which contain a AR—FREEREZ
repayment on demand clause RITERZEBD 2,309 35,934
201,181 193,653
Non-current liabilities e =R
Bank loans due for repayment after AR—FREERZ
one year RITER 7,710 8,130
208,891 201,783
The bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of IRITEEIRE K AYEE - iE®EaS
the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year REREEEFI(MAEYEAREE
which contain a repayment on demand clause (and therefore B)ZBER—FEBEBZHRITETS S
classified as current liability) is expected to be settled within TEERS R —FENAEE -

one year.
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The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled
repayment is as follows:

Portion of bank loans due for repayment
within one year

Portion of bank loans due for repayment R —FE & F|HEE 2
after one year (note (a)) IRITER 2 2o (M

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREHRERER

After 2 years but within 5 years MERBERFA

After 5 years hFi&

—FRIHEER
fEﬁ%ﬁAZE‘B

tl; i

i

$%@Zfﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬂf§”ﬁ HHf &
TZAWWT

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
159,511 157,719
33,988 2,611
7,837 33,389
7,555 8,064
208,891 201,783

Notes:

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on
demand clause.

The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period,
all denominated in HK$, bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.2% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%
(2021: HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%)
per annum. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
December 2022 ranged from 2.63% to 5.78% (2021: 1.20% to 2.25%)
per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities are secured by
certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and bank deposits with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$214,596,000 (2021: HK$215,597,000), HK$43,000,000 (2021:
HK$44,800,000) and HK$86,248,000 (2021: HK$80,989,000)
respectively, also corporate guarantee given by the Company to the
extent of HK$208,891,000 (2021: HK$201,783,000).

ZEDNBHETIREE R BEATE 2 5
EEERSMAERETAEAREREER

B S, 2 8
R ZE -

RIRERR - AEEZRITEE(HUE
¥HE) - DRIRBEBRITRERS(E
BIRITRZERE D) MEB12%E1.4%
IR & B B A F R F £.2.95% £ 3.00%
FA(ZEZ—F : AARTRERSM
FE1.0%E1 A% RIEFEBRFIRFHELS
2.95%%3.00%) c RZE_—F+=-1
=+—8 AEEZRITEEFFEN
F2.63%%5.78% (=% = —4 : 1.20%
%2.25%) ©

AEBZRATEERBITBRETIUA
& B BRH B 5 Bl 4975 % 214,596,000 7T
(ZZ=—4 : #%215,597,0007T) *
75 #43,000,0007C (=T = —F : B
44,800,000 7t ) K& 7% ¥ 86,248,000 T
—T - —4F : #¥80,989,0007T) Z
ETWE - BEREE REWERR
TER ARAARELEZ ER A
#0208,891,0007L (=T = — 4 : B
201,783,0007T ) Z A RIEREHK R o
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(d) In respect of bank borrowings with carrying amount of HK$198,301,000
as at 31 December 2022, the Group breached certain financial
covenants of these bank borrowings. The Group has commenced
negotiations of the financial covenants of these borrowings with the
banker and as at 31 December 2022, no waiver was granted to the
Group from the lending bank.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group had received a waiver
from the lending bank for the above bank borrowings in relation to the
covenants.

Details of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and
their movements during the current and prior years are as
follows:

(d) MR T —F+-A=+—HHRHT
EERMEEB%198,301,0007T * ANEE
BRTZERTEENE THBERE -
AEEDHBTRZEBEENMBRER
EE  BAR-TE-_—F+=-A=+—
B BERBTEARARNEEREEARE -

RZZB-__F+-_A=1+—H#& X%
EEEFRITHZERHER L LR RTT
R -

7K1 B A B R 2 I
EREAE () REBH S
m

Impairment Fair value

Accelerated losson  changes of
tax right-of-use  investment
depreciation assets  properties Total
EREEE REME
MEBEHE HEBR <AVEED &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BB BT
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—%—-F—-H (4,028) - (2,624) (6,652)
Credit/(charged) to profit or loss REBEPEFA/ (NR) 2 7B
(note 9) (i) = 558 (60) 498
At 31 December 2021 and R=B=-#+ZA=+-BK
1 January 2022 —B-—%-A-H (4,028) (2,684) (6,154)
Charged to profit or loss BRIk 2 FIE (M59)
(note 9) (90)
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-Zf+=-A=+-H (4,028) (2,684) (6,244)

At 31 December 2022, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$376,450,000 (2021: HK$351,098,000),
subject to the agreement of the Inland Revenue Department
which is available for offset against future profit. Under
current tax legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

RZZE_—F+_A=+—H ' &%
B 2 F 18 & B 4 & 7% # 376,450,000
L (=T = —F : ¥ 351,098,000
L) (BEHERRE) @ aJE#ER G
F o B IR RETE B R HOE F AROR - M
WARBRELEREBEEE - RIEERIZ
FRIEAG - BTE B8 ] & R B 4
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28. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 28. IRIEHIIA (4H)
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
Represented by: 48AK -
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 449 558
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (6,693) (6,712)
(6,244) (6,154)
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29.
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
BREEEY02TZEER
Number of Nominal value
shares HK$’000
B#5EE HEBYTT
Authorised: ERE

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022

R-ZZ_—%—H—H8 =%
—_—H+=-A=+—H8k
- —_#+-A=+—H

2,000,000,000

400,000

Issue and fully paid:

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022

ERTRAR :
R—ZE-_—%—HA—H =T
——&+-A=t+—8K

—E-—F#+—-H=+—8H 326,077,423
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A share option scheme (the “Existing Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 and 30
May 2019 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the participants who have contributed to the Group
and encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Upon the expiry of
the Existing Share Option Scheme on 21 May 2019, no further
option can be offered thereunder but any options granted prior
to such expiry but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable. A new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company pursuant to
a resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2019. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors may, at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of
any member of the Group, any advisors and service providers
of any member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
the options by each of the relevant grantees.

The options vest on the condition that the grantee is a
participant of the New Share Option Scheme from the date of
options grant to the commencement date of the exercisable
period of the options and the participant is not required to
achieve any performance targets before any share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme can be
exercised.

RABRBER _ZETAFRAA-_+
BR-ZZB-NAFREA=THETZR
RAFAS LBBZIRBRFMBER
e ([REBMRETE]) - %A
BESE X2 B MR AEN S ER
BAKEFELERZ2R2E - AR
B2EERARNRBREBR ZEEN
SHNRSAAALERND ZEE -
BEBREFENR_-_ZT-NAFHA
—t—HEIH FEBHBRUREERD
E BB AR - AR B EIATIR
MARTTEZ BRESEEE RN T
T - ARBRBER_F-NAFRHA
ZSTHETZRREFAELAEBZ
RBERRAF B S ([ 3B
AHEL)  REBHBRESS  EF
eARNBRANEBREAKEQRZE
= BB UERAKEEAKERF
Z A0 R ] % R 75 £ 9 o B AR
UREARA RN - RBEKTER
To=Fdhz&"%E  (\ARABRNHR
BB E B3z WmiE : (i)
BOREZRRTLBREE B AT AER
7 BEBR AT FHKRTE - Rk
MEE - FEBEARARREZHRL
ZIERER - XEB1ITZREAR

& -

BREZFBIRTRERARERE
BEAREBRETESRGEZES
IR - BARB R ERETE 2
S2EA - M2 EABARRERBR
REET 819X th 2 1 o 6 B 4 m] JE 1T (£ A
EREARERR -
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30. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 30. DAMAn Az #iE (48)
(CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the year and their MRERNBEIRE S8 RENEFLHT
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EEWT :
Weighted
average
Number of exercise
options price
nrEEH
EBREHE TEE
HKS$
BT
Outstanding at 1 January 2021, RZZE-_—4F—H—H8-
31 December 2021 and —E-—F+-_A=1+—HK
31 December 2022 —E-_F+-A=+—H
im ARTTIE 12,548,000
Exercisable at 1 January 2021, R-EBE-_—F—HF—8-
31 December 2021 and -4+ -_A=+—HK
31 December 2022 - —_F+-A=+—H
RI{T1E 12,548,000
No share options were exercised during the years ended 31 MEERERABE T -~ —F
December 2022 and 2021. ——F+—_A=+—HItEERNET

& -
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The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

RBERARZRITERREZITEE
RATERT

follows:
Number of Exercise
options price Exercise period
BREHA TEE 1TEH
HK$
BT
2022 and 2021
—ECFER-E-—F
Granted on 14 Sept 2016 3,096,000 0.732 14 Sept 2016 - 13 Sept 2026
RZE—REANATHBARH —E—R"FNATHEA
E_FE-RFNA+T=H
Granted on 19 Sept 2017 3,096,000 0.698 19 Sept 2017 — 18 Sept 2027
RZZE—tFNATIBEED —E—tFNATNE
E-T+HFAATNAAB
Granted on 3 Oct 2018 3,096,000 0.395 3 0ct 2018 — 2 Oct 2028
RZE-N\FE+A=ZAEHE Z—\F+H=AR
i_z_A¢+ﬂ =i
Granted on 16 Oct 2019 3,260,000 0.250 16 Oct 2019 — 15 Oct 2029

\—7 jli‘f’ﬂ‘f’/\a?ﬁﬂj

—ZE-AF+A+<H
2T -AF+HATHH

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.3 years (2021:

6.3 years).

RITEERER_ZE_—_F+=-A
=+ —BZEFEHBTE L8R
B53F(ZEF_—4F : 6.3F) o
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HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. HERA A BSIR UL 3£

Notes
M

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries PRHEBARZRE 32

Current assets REBEE

Other receivables and prepayments £t [ I B8R 3¢ K T8 1+ 5718

Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUR B B A B FRIE

Pledged bank deposits BRI TIE K

Cash and bank balances R MIRTTARR

Current liabilities REEE

Other payables and accruals E{‘MEHBEQ&FEEJ@’UE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHB B A Rl EIE

Amount due to a shareholder FEfT— %Hﬁ%m

Net current assets REBEEZRE

Net assets BEEFE

EQUITY R

Share capital [N 29

Reserves 1 33

Total equity R

On behalf of the directors REES

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel
EHER
Director

EF

2022
—s=-=

HK$°000
BETT

573
312,815
28,096
4,781

346,265

1,039
120,499
15,000

136,538

209,727

259,527

65,215
194,312

259,527

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania

KREAE
Director

EF

2021
—E- %
HK$’000
BT

49,800

512
279,593
57,926
21,096

359,127

77
120,517
15,000

136,234

222,893

272,693

65,215
207,478

272,693



As at 31 December 2022, the Company had direct and indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries:
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RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—8 ' &R

=

/|

E

A TIMB ARz B K EEE

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
LN Vg
MR L B K G
AR LB EANER TRERRCEHE ERITRAFE 2B
Held directly:
BEERE:
Century Legend Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 63,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$0.01 each
HERRREBRAF RERIHES  BRAA REBREREER BREEIETLZ 100%
63,0000 & i#k
Century Legend Management ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited company management services in  of HK$1,000,000
Hong Kong
HERRERERAF B8 ARRDA REBRENEEERY  %%1,000,0007T2 100%
1,000,0008% & A
Century Legend Entertainment  British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited liability company Hong Kong
HEREREBRAT RBRAHS  BRAR  REBUSREER 1ETLZ 1R AR 100%
CL Property Investments Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding in 1 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
HREXREBRAA B ARDA REBRSREER BT ARG BR 100%
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
R B 3Lt B K% BER
AEIEL EANER TEEBRCEBE BRITRAFE 2B
Held indirectly:
BiERE
Century Legend Finance Limited Hong Kong, Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
limited liability company and personal loans in of HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong
HERRMEBRAR B ARDA REBRHEEFER 7%10,000,0007T.Z 100%
MAER 10,000,0008% & AR
Century Legend Strategic Hong Kong, Investment holding and 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Investments Limited limited liability company trading securities in of HK$10,000,000;
Hong Kong 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares™ of
HK$5,000,000
HERRRBRE B ARRDA REBRBEER #%10,000,0007T 2 100%
lYNG] MWAER 10,000,000 & A% :
#15,000,0007T 2
5,000,000/ &% F 12
R R
EA Interior Contracting Limited  Hong Kong, Provision of interior 100 ordinary shares of 100%
limited liability company and property project HK$100
management service
EA Interior Contracting Limited &% * AR A7 REZARMEBEEERE B%1007T 21008 T EK 100%
R
CL Entertainment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding and 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
company property investment in of HK$10,000
Macau
HERREFBR AT BA  BRRA PRFIEEREERR  %%10,0007T.2 10,0008 100%
MERE 35l
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
N3
AR B 3L B K iR
AR EH EANER TEXERREEHE ERTRAFE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEE (&)
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares 58%
limited liability company under the brand name of HK$3,827,496
of “Headquarters” in
Hong Kong
BBARAE B8 ARRA REBAmE 73,827,496 L2 58%
[Headquarters | 150,000/ & i %
Century Legend Properties Hong Kong, Investment holding, 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments
and trading securities in
Hong Kong
e REMERRAR B ARDA REBRSREER - BT ARG ER 100%
Simple Way Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company
HEARNTE B8 ARRA max BT ARG BR 100%
Max Rise Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company property investments in
Hong Kong
JBERERR AR B8 ARRDA REBREREZRE BT IREER 100%
NERE
Hong Kong Macau Travel Hong Kong, Provision of travel agency 500,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company services in Hong Kong HK$500,000
BRIKEAR AR BB ARRDA REBREKTARE  %%500,0007T2 100%

500,000 & 17 A%
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
1R B 3Lt B KR BER
AEIEL EANER TEEBRCEBE BRITRAFE 2B
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEE (&)
Homy Group Plus Limited Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 10,000 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company Service HK$10,000
Homy Group Plus Limited B BRRA BR AR E RS R 75%10,0007.2 70%
10,000 & &K
HRL Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$100
HRL Limited BA BRRA RRIRERR 100702 1008k LBk 70%
Silver Billion Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
limited liability company
Silver Billion Enterprises Limited &7 * BREA Tmax BT 2 1IRE AR 70%
Full Wave Development Limited Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
limited liability company Service
Full Wave Development Limited &% © B2 BREEIRE R R BEATZ IR G BR 70%
HGNP One Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP One Limited BE BRRA RARKEMR FREEABIT 70%

1008 &R
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
N3
1R B 3 3t B K iR
AR EH EANER TEXERREEHE BRITRAFHE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE (&)
HGNP Plus Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Plus Limited BE AR RAKSER FREEAES 1T 70%
100k % Eik
HGNP Three Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Three Limited BE BB FAKSER BRAEEEEIT 70%
100k % Ak
HGNP Four Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Four Limited BA  BRARA RAKSER BREEAEIT 70%
1008k & Ak
HGNP Six Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Six Limited &% BRRA FRIRE R BRAEEEEITL 70%
100H% & Ak
Macau Mesquita Homy Inn Macau, Inactive Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 42%
Limited limited liability company 25,000
LISEREE e B - BRAA TEaX P ([JRPIH 1)25,0007T 42%
BRAH
Century Legend Properties Macau, Investment holding in MOP25,000 100%
(Macau) Limited limited liability company Macau
g ¥ E ORF) BF - AR REFREREER JRF9%25,0007T 100%

BRRT]
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG g3
SER AR L it B K% BER
AR AR EAER TEERREEHE ERTRAFE ZAR
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BiERs : (E)
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, Property investments in -~ MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company Macau
R ENERE R BRAA REFIRENERE JRF9#25,0007T 100%
EBRAT
CL MLO12 Property Investment  Macau, Property investments in -~ MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company Macau
tHEMLO12MERE R BRAA REFIRENERE JRF9%25,0007T 100%
ERAT
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery Macau, Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company
tERERERAE B BRAA Tmex RPI#25,0007T 100%
BRAF
The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends * EREREEROER EEEERR
or to participate in any distribution in winding up. They carry no rights to B MEZ2ESENER S ERER -
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting. HBEREEREREMAREASASES - b
FEAEARRERAGRRBREAE LRE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the BMERBATRFERE BEITEMEL

end of the year (2021: nil). BHE(ZEZ—F E)o
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Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises to the fair value gain on
transferred from self-occupied property to investment
property in 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve represents the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

A5 G 5 3R M AR

BE—F_—F+-A=1—HIFE

REE
AEERAFEERBEFEZIHES
BREH IR EEEEBRTIR -

B2 MEENT ¢
(a) EXRfFE
REBZ EARGFEEE

(b)

(c)

(i) ARRAREHTHRAEE
HAKAEBZZER
ARE-NAN=FKH
BEH 2z AEE RS
mERCERE &

(i) HEAMERAERE F
TREARY  HZTZT
—FEBTRMNHZER
HEB 0.1 7T HIRE

#0.097T °
BEh#E
BEEFEEERER T — &7
BEMEEBREREDEND
AW -
BEAFEFAHMEZEKA
2B EERE
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 33. fwtifhi (%)
Group (Continued) AEE(E)
(d) Share option reserve (d) BRERE
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance B ERECRIEN FE3.17F7
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17. o EHERT o
Company KA
Share
Share  Contributed option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R4 % ME ERRS BRERE RitEE &it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI AETT BRI BETIL ARTTL

At 1 January 2021 RZZE-—-F—-f—H 168,227 213,978 3,110 (163,002) 212,313
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (4,835) (4,835)

At 31 December 2021 and R=-FE=--f£+-F=+-H
A—H

1 January 2022 E-E-__&-F- 158,227 213,978 (167,837) 207,478
Loss for the year AFEEER - - (13,166) (13,166)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—#+-A=+-AH 158,227 213,978 (181,003) 194,312

Contributed surplus of the Company represents: KNB 2 BHEERTE

(i) the difference between the underlying net tangible 0] KRR FTWEEHT B AR 2B
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and BREEFBEANDAD i
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company EFERAF I ERTRMEE
at the time of the group reorganisation referred to ZERE &
above; and

(i) the reduction in issued share capital arising from the (ii) AR RAGERE BITRA
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on WL HZETE-—FEBTR
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001. 92 GREESEO0.17TH ER

BH0.097T °
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The Group as lessee (a) ATEEEAREABEA
Nature of leasing activities HEXKMHE
The Group leases a number of properties in the Hong REBRBBHELZEAME -
Kong, including office premises, hostel premises and BEEZENRAZTYE Ik
hair salon from which it operates. All the periodic rent is SEMENEARE - HEIANMA
fixed over the lease term. EHHESHYAEE -
Lease liabilities HESRE
Other
properties
leased for
own use
HENHEH
Hih %
HK$’000
ST IT
At 1 January 2021 RZE=——F—H—H 18,738
Effect of lease modification HEBR & (693)
Interest expense (note 7) FERZ(MEE7) 582
Lease payments MAEIE (8,812)

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-E-_—F+-A=+—HRK

—E--“f—H—H 9,815
Addition NE 2,051
Effect of lease modification HEBRZZE 6,997
Interest expense (note 7) F B (MFE7) 377

Lease payments HERIE (8,222)

At 31 December 2022 H-E-_—&F#+=-H=+—H 11,018
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34. LEASES (CONTINUED) 34. HE ()
(a) The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) ZIK$I1’F2%E‘<$HA(§§)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HES®EE)
Future lease payments are due as follows: RERBEMNZRIBHBEROT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
BEEENE FIE BRE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AT T BT T BT T

As at 31 December 2022 WH=-T-—%F

+=A=+—H
Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year, S -FZFAFER
inclusive (BRMFEBREEN)

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
REHRERE A RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETIT BETIT

As at 31 December 2021 R-EE——F

+=B=+—H
Within one year — &R 8,251 (227) 8,024
In the second to fifth year, FE_FEFRFN
inclusive (EEMERIETEAN) 1,800 9) 1,791
10,051 (236) 9,815
The total cash outflows for leases (including repayment BE_T_—_F+-_A=+—
of lease liabilities) in the year ended 31 December 2022 BIEFEMBEERSRLEE
was HK$8,678,000 (2021: HK$9,268,000). (RIEEEHEARE) AAK

8,678,000t (ZT=—%F : &
#9,268,0007T) °
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34. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b)

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years
(2021: one to four years). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

34. HE(4H)

(b)

Within one year B —F

After one year but within two years fBia—F{E TR BMRF
After two years but within three years #BiBmM BB =4

AEBEAHBAA
AEERBELEHETELA
HIGEAWME (MZE15) HEZ
BN T —ZENF(=ZF=—
F . —ENF) c RREHK -
BIREFE P TS 2 7~ Al i 8s £
EHE  AEBERUATFHE
B A FE R R K EFIE AR
T

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT

2,990 2,817
1,798 357
155 =

4,943 3,174

159
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35.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. HZAEB e ERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHESANBEYHERNOT :
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITIEE HEAE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Note 27) (Note 34)
(F¥zE27) (Ff17¥E34)
At 1 January 2021 R-ZEBE-_—F—HF—H 204,371 18,738
Changes from cash flows: e mEEa)
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE (2,588) -
Loan interest paid BRNERFE (2,735) -
Principal element of lease payment HENRZEREE D - (8,230)
Interest element of lease payment MENFZF 20D = (582)
Total changes from financing cash flows FI&EIR &R EE AT (5,323) (8,812)
Other changes: HEmEs)
Effect of lease modification HEBRTE = (693)
Interest expense (note 7) B (M5E7) 2,735 582

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Changes from cash flows:
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Loan interest paid
Principal element of lease payment
Interest element of lease payment

R=T=—

RemEED) :
IRITIEEME
BERTEE
ENERFE
HEMNF
HENT

SHIB

P DN

FE+-A=+—H
r=—ZF-——F—H—H

K2 A® B

i)

201,783

10,000
(2,892)
(5,193)

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from
entering into new leases
Effect of lease modification
Interest expense (note 7)

BERSREL PR

Eib 2B :
ST R E
S A
g LR E
F.28 2 (F3E7)

5,193

At 31 December 2022

RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—8H

208,891

(7,845)
(377)

(8,222)




MR (RED)ARAF - —FFER 0]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A e T B AR M RE

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « BZ—FE - —F1+=-H=+—HIF&F

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BAH NG
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRZEERRAMDBEEBREZRS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the KN FAREE REGEA T

ETTIERRS -

following significant transactions with related parties during the

year:
(@) Compensation of key management personnel (a) ETEEEAEZHH
The directors are of the opinion that the key FERE TEEBABRANK
management personnel are the directors of the RAZESRETESHME
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in E REZHLSEBOIRER
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose MsE13(a) B M sE13(0) ©
remunerations are set out in note 13(b).
(b) Operating lease arrangements (b) RKEHERH
2022 2021
—ZE__ B —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Rental expenses for MATRBIZNAEL
a motor vehicle paid to HeMX
— Smiley & Bee Limited —Smiley & Bee Limited 240
— Complex Investments Limited —BERBREFREANR 216
Rental income received from MR A B HE 2 & WA
— Po Lee Securities Limited —EFFEE5FRAT 850
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(c) Others (c)

2022 2021
—=E=-= T —F

HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETIT

Company secretary service income A A N2 "] WELZ A Al E iR

received from AN
- Po Lee Asset Management —BNEEEEFRAA

Limited 5
- Po Lee Investment Consultant — BT EBERER AR

Limited B
- Po Lee Securities Limited —ENBELFBRAA 5
— Raise Success Limited —Raise Success Limited 52

Broker fee paid to MATRRX N2 &L B

- Po Lee Securities Limited —BNESFBRAA 3

These arrangements are mutually agreed by the Group
and the contracting parties.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the bengficial
shareholder and director of Smiley & Bee Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia, director, are the beneficial shareholder and
director of Complex Investments Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Chu Ming Tak
Tania, director, are the director of Po Lee Securities
Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the bengficial
trustee and director of Raise Success Limited.

Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania, director, is the director
of Po Lee Asset Management Limited and Po Lee
Investment Consultant Limited.

ZERRAKERANTE
TRERERE

EE LR ILEBSmiley & Bee
LimitedZ B R N ESE -

ESCMRLERERAELL
REMBREBRARZERS
BRREE -

EECMRSERKABLL
RENBZBRABIZES -

EEYHBHRLE ARaise
Success LimitedZ B S 5T A

RES -

EERABRKLIRENEEE
BERARLRENREERSA
RARZES -
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The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

37.1 Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting
period are categorised as follows. See note 3.11
for explanations on how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

AEBEAEZBMERER  TEA™
SRR (BRmINERE - AR E R KR
ZERER)  FERBRERBDESRE
R o AREMNRBRREERETINE
BTSN AR FRANE - X NSO E S
AEBEMBRANBETNZE - T
XNEIEZESRTAEB AR R
7R & BUR R 7% % B TR B IR -
7R 5 B 35 B 3P 4R i) X = B B 3R I T K
RRiES - AWM EFEREHE
W EHEBREEABRTAE AR
B B R A 0 AT 3 Il E B K BR R
BT R\ B 2 SR

371 £WMIBEZER
RIEBRE RSB
EERBEBEZERES BN
T EBESR T A ZERM{A
FEHARTE ML - R
5F3.11 °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BB R ERE H LA ERE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

A
Tre
il
—

(Continued)
(i) Financial assets

37.1 Categories of financial instruments

371 €I EZER(E)

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at

amortised cost

— Trade and other receivables
and deposits

— Amount due from
non-controlling interest

— Pledged bank deposits

— Cash and bank balances

(ii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at 128 4K A s & 2

amortised cost

— Trade and other payables

— Amount due to a shareholder
— Bank borrowings (secured)

(i) B EE
2022 2021
—EB-CF —F=—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BRI
BAFEFAEMEE
WA Z TS EE 5,026
BAVEFABRZ
s EE 70,445
BN AGTE 2
B EE
— R R E AU
7 e 7,088 4,312
— FEUR FEYERR R 2
B 10 10
—BEMIRITER 86,248 80,989
—IRE MIRTTER 15,088 27,596
172,381 188,378
(i) HMEAE
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEETIT
BEasE
— BN EMERRR 7,887 5,251
— N — R R IR 15,000 15,000
—IRITIEE (HIKT) 208,891 201,783

231,778

222,034
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37.1 Categories of financial instruments
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other financial instruments

AL E S (SR FRAH

SRR

A e T B AR M RE

B2 T - —Ff - H=1—HIFE

37.1 TRT A ZER (&)

(iii)

— Lease liabilities —HHEaE

Financial instruments not measured at
fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value include trade and other receivables
and deposits, balances with non-controlling
interests, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, amount
due to a shareholder, lease liabilities and bank
borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments except for
non-current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

For disclosure purpose, the fair values of non-
current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are not materially different from their carrying
values. The fair value has been determined using
discounted cash flow model and is classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Significant
inputs include expected future cash flows and
discount rate used credit risk of the Group.

(iv)

BT

Hih&mIT A

2022 2021
—s=-=
HK$°000

—E ==
HK$’000
ST IT

11,018 9,815

WIHRAFETEZ
TRITA
YIEAFEFEZS
BMTABREXNEM
FEU SRR Mz - H3F
ElEm a8
WRTER  RERR
1THERR - EXRRHEME
AR - BN —RER
A HEREBENRRT
fBE -

EREBHNE  %Fe
RTACGERBHHEERE
FARTTREERIN 2 BRE
BEEEQERS -

LEEMS - JFREH
ERABERRITEEZR
FEEEFAETEE
RER - RFETLER
BRHRERERLE
EoXELSBESAFE
EMEIE - EABER
BRAEEEERRANTE
HIARREREREER

E%T_(o
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37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(v)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices which is classified as level 1
financial instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

37.1

MBREERERZER (&)

(v)

BEAFEFEzSE

TR

B 54 2 M 3R R A 1
WRERBRBHIER S
MZAFEFAEME
EUAZ BB ERIE
REEFABEZHH
BEZRATE 2%
MEHREETE wHE
REIESHTIA-

FR - REF2ERES
EEmITH -

TREHZAFETER
ZEMIAZ M (RE
RNERREID) !

-  B1E: MHREE
REERERH
152 BB (RER

)

-  F2E HEEH
BEMEZ(BE
%) sk (Bl
EBREIT) AR
ZBA(TBES
1EMEEZR
E): &

—  SB3E : AERE
ABRZMEH
BeEREESL
BEzZBAEZL
BIRZBA) -
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AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(v)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1
E1E
HK$'000
BETT

As 31 December 2022 W=-T=-—%
+t=HA=+-R

Financial assets at FVTPL 1z AEMEE ABz
ZUBEE

Financial assets at FVOCI 22 FET A
HizmEBA
CUBEE

Net fair values FATE

As 31 December 2021  WZZT-—4F
+-A=1+—~H
Financial assets at FVTPL &A1&t A8z
LHBEE
Financial assets at FVOCI #ZAF{Ezt A
Hib2HEBRA

ZHBEE

70,445

5,026

37.

AR JEL B i B K T E R =
(4"&)
371 MEKEERABEBEZER(E)
vy ®EAFEIFEZSH
IE(E)
RERE BB AR AR AR
ANYEFHECHBEE
T8 D BT ZAYE
B4
Level 2 Level 3 Total
28 EIE &3t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEFT BB

70,445

5,026

Net fair values FATE 75,471

75,471
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37.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(v)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and
financial assets at FVOCI income are listed equity
securities denominated in HKS$. Fair values have
been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the end of the reporting period.

37.1

MBREERERZER (&)

(v)

BAVEHEZ SR
TR (%)
RIBEME - F1EESE
2 2 MW MRS -

A ERFEERNT
5% R fib B T B 5 A 3R
= ERRAALL A R o

AEBZRAFEA
BRmcUBEEREZR
FEFAEMBZEERA
2B EEWRARBLE
BEHEZLTRAE
e RFEDZ2EAHR
BERBERRARL
BEAEBMERE -
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37.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group’s exposures to currency risk arise
from its deposits placed in banks, which are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out in notes
22 and 23. The Group have no other significant
foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency
transactions as the Group mainly operate in Hong
Kong with majority of the business transactions being
denominated and settled in HKS.

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as
follows:

Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITIF K
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTAS

g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

A e T B AR M RE

B2 T - —Ff - H=1—HIFE

37.2 SMEEmEBE

SNERREERTAZATE
HARRBEREKHEEREE)
mKE) 2 Bk o #anH E22 &
23FTEL - ANEEZHNE R KR R
BREFBRNRRITZER - &
TERNEERAREFE - A
RASETEETBENR K
MOBEXZHNEEFER
BE - BINEXZER - At
REE R E A E MBI
R o

B B =

MINESH BB EERARE
R HEXRESEE 2 BER
s

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

86,248 80,989
53 20,621

101,610
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37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s result and equity in regard to a 2.5% (2021:
2.5%) appreciation in the foreign currencies against
the Group entities’ functional currencies. The 2.5%
(2021: 2.5%) is the rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency exchange rates
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the year.

2.5% (2021: 2.5%) appreciation in A R¥EFAE2.5%

RMB (ZZ=—%F :25%)

A 2.5% (2021: 2.5%) depreciation in the foreign
currencies against the Group entities’ functional
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

37.2 SRR (&)

BREDW
TREOLAEEXERERE
SN AREEERIEEEA
B2 5%(ZFE=—F :25%)2
BRKE - 25%( - T — —4F :
25%) BAAEEANTRNEEE
B A B 2 R HINE [ R B AT
ZHE - WAEEREHINEE
KA B) 2 B fEhETELE -

RE B S HIR AR 2 SNE
Bz GRRE DT TIRBER B
BRERRBRCEERRNFR
—ERFBZINEERRRED
BOLERE -

Decrease in Decrease in
loss for loss for

the year and the year and
accumulated accumulated
losses losses
FREBER FAEER
CE N RETEERS

2022 2021

—_E__ —E—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
2,540

HNEE S RN B B BB T RE B S BL
E25%(ZFE=-—%F :2.5%)
BEAEEAFEXENIER
ERAREEERAR ZFE -
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s result
and equity (through the impact on floating rate bank
borrowings).

E ([ A2 )8
+100& 25

Increase in basis points (“bp”)
+ 100 bp

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.

37.3 FEEM

MERBRDAREBTAZAR
FEZREREFEDHH X
EYPMmREBH AR - NEEFT
mEZANEEHMERARER
Y AEBENFHNELZ L
RITIEE - AREREHEL
M EERBE - A - E=R
ERNEEHER  AER

VERERBEIPERNRES) -

TRIVRN A E M2 BURES
A AR IR A R A B
BIERT  ARBEZXERE
HCEBHFBNERRITEEZ
FE)HEE G -

Increase in Increase in

loss for loss for
the year and
accumulated

the year and
accumulated

losses losses
FREBER FREER
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37.4 Equity price risk 37.4 REEBKEKE

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI (note 17) and financial assets
at FVTPL (note 19).

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commaodity price risk.

At 31 December 2022, if the quoted market price for
the financial assets at FVOCI had been 10% (2021:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$501,000 (2021: HK$503,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2021: 10%) higher with all other variables
remain unchanged, the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses would decrease by HK$5,894,000
(2021: HK$7,045,000). A 10% (2021: 10%) lower in the
quoted market price for listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at FVTPL, with all other variables
held constant, would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

km S 1% BB T AR IR AN 3
NEE IR F 18 8K F & AE R
BEEBEEEH MR 2 RER -

ﬁ'ﬁ..&éﬂ:mﬂxﬁ E5 (D

BEREATEFAHEME2EK

A2 BEE(fE17) RIRA

FEFABE T BEE (T

19)) - E“&E%thﬁﬂi$§§#?ﬁ

EE g Rk

BEEgaFTRRARLEHREHY
KREHESG  NEBIRER - I
%Wﬁﬁﬁ%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

cAREBEEHAMER
HM

RN —F+=-_g=+—
B RUOHEAEZAFETA
Ee2mBAZHBKEEM
RemELEAH TE10% (=
E-—F:10%) mMAAAE
HmEHEFTTE - AJAEE
ZRET AN, KA
501,0007T e (ZZEZ=—F : &
#503,0007T) °

Rifn -+ WE D EAEEAFER
ABZ2HBEE 2 ETBRA
BEMFZTELA10%B(ZF
——%F :10%) - MATEHME
BHEFTE  BIANEBZAF
EEBEREERER DB
5,894,000 (T = —F : &
#57,045,0007T) ° fifE DB A
EQiﬁ%A%ﬁZWFﬁF
ZEMBRAEBEEHBFZMET

B10%(—ZZFE = —%F : m%%
AT A H &g Al
REB 2 AFEXBEMERS
ERRREEEBERNTZE -



g g () FRAF - —F T ARER

o /E.\ S 5 e 3K M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 « #Z —F— —F+—H=+—HIFFZ

37.5 Credit risk 375 =EERR

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loans receivable is
performed by the directors on on-going basis.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a simplified approach. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each debtor. The
default risk of the industry and country in which debtors
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables, deposits
and amount due from non-controlling interest, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial
instruments are their carrying values.
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37.5 Credit risk (Continued) 375 FERK(E)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix by reference
to past default experience of the debtor and current
market condition in relation to each debtor’s exposure
and time value of money where appropriate. The ECLs
also incorporate forward looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions that
may affect the liability of the debtors to settle the trade
receivables. Trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The Group has assessed that the expected loss rate
was not significant as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Accordingly, no loss allowance for trade receivables
was recognised.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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37.6

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables, deposits and
amount due from non-controlling interest, the Group
considers the background and regularly monitors the
financial condition of the counterparties to assess
the recoverability of the outstanding balances. The
management does not expect any loss allowance from
non-performance by the counterparties and assessed
that the ECLs in respect of these balances were
immaterial at the end of the reporting period.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because majority of the bank
balances are deposited in reputable banks, for which
the Group consider to have low credit risk. There
was no history of default in relation to these financial
institutions.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BARSE By N EEN =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%8
(CONTINUED)

37.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile
of the Group’s financial liabilities and other financial
instruments based on contractual undiscounted cash

=

37.6 RBESEMR(E)
RBEHER  AEBEREL
ABBRRERECHEEEK
Emem TAIBERERSH

flows is as follows: FEATR -
Total
contractual Total
On Within In2to  More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1 year 5years 5years  cash flows amount
GLEN 3]

BEX -fR CEEf BBEF ReREAE  REAE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKBOOD  HK§O00  HK$000

E&TT BBt E¥Tn BT BBt E¥Tn

At 31 December 2022 W-E--—E+-A=t-R
Trade and other payables EEREMENERR
Amount due to a shareholder Jléﬁ ZRRFE

Lease liabiliies HEEE

Bank borrowings including those
contain a repayment on demand
clause (note)

BiRE(REEAREX
BEKTENER)
(Kit)

200,760

210,849

208,891

PARN ()] 245,297 242,796
At 31 December 2021 AZEZ-F+ZA=1-H
Trade and other payables EEREMERER - 5,251 = = 5,251 5,251
Amount due to a shareholder N -2kEE 15,000 - - - 15,000 15,000
Lease liabilties fHEafk 8,251 1,800 = 10,051 9,815
Bank borrowings including those {758 (BEHAREY
contain arepayment on demend ~ EREF 2 HITEE)
clause (note) (P3t) 193,19 622 2,487 7,151 203,479 201,783
208,219 14,124 4287 7,151 238,781 231,849
Note:  For bank loans which contain a repayment on demand clause Mzt : BRBARTAIZEBETE

ZRERKEEERZRTE
analysis above shows the cash outflow based on the earliest M E SRS ER A
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is if BRZ&FHE(BHE F#1T
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the EE SRR E ji BNBS (Ei8
loans with immediate effect. B 25HemE

which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
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37.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis
of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
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Maturity analysis - bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HERERRERI L RTETET D2 HBEAH

Within
1 year

—£R

HK$'000
AR

31 December 2022 —E--#+=-A=+-H 163,212

31 December 2021 “E--E+-fA=1-H 158,388

In2to
5 years

—RIE
HK$'000
BRI

41,369

38,184

Total
contractual Total
More than undiscounted carrying
5years cash outflows amount
RHRER
BBLE HeRELE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETTT BET T
1,896 206,477 200,760
1,889 198,461 193,219
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and

benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the

Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$280,928,000
(2021: HK$308,280,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment

opportunities.
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Investment Properties BEYE
Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
) HE HE EEEE REBE B
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No.44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RPIBE RN AB B4R ITEERER UKL [HES hEATHE 349 AR 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
BPIRFEA SRS 55519-5975% (S RHIHE 8,110 5 R 100%
L§5%38-78-B5
R E 4 1% % 565-605-CHF
SR E H EHP12-07 ~ P12-08 « P12-09 &%
P12-10B
26 Andar T1/B, One Central Residences, Residential Medium term 1,359 sq.ft. 100%
EM Macau Avenida De Sagres N58, Macau leasehold
SRPID I BT K 55 B 5855 E 55 B 5 2612 T1/BEE F=E HETRE 1,359 5 R 100%
G/F of nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 615 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan, leasehold
and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
EIROKEEAT105-1075R M N B MERFE 135 % REIHE 615F 7R 100%

F 136
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Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
15 HE HE EEEE rEBEMN
Flat H, 20/F, Residential Long term 691 sq.ft. 100%
Heng Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
FRRBOBA LA R B 1955 E=E RAMEE 691 F 7R 100%
=L EILE20EHE
Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold
Horizon Gardens,
No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
BRI A T EE175R T=® REHEE 902F /R 100%
BREBERMRE10EB=
Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
BB ERA SR G E215E = REE 675F R 100%

=l & B L RI23IEF =
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